ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our principal physical assets consist of cable operating plant and equipment, including signal receiving,
encoding and decoding devices, headend facilities and distribution systems and equipment at or near customers’
homes for each of the systems. The signal receiving apparatus typically includes a tower, antenna, ancillary
electronic equipment and earth stations for reception of satellite signals. Headend facilities are located near the
receiving devices. Our distribution system consists primarily of coaxial and fiber optic cables and related electronic
equipment. Customer premise equipment consists of set-top devices and cable modems. Our cable plant and related
equipment generaily are attached to utility poles under pole rental agreements with local public utilities; although in
some areas the distribution cable is buried in underground ducts or trenches. The physical components of the cable
systems require maintenance and periodic upgrading to improve system performance and capacity. In addition, we
maintain a network operations center with equipment necessary to monitor and manage the status of our HSD
network.

We own and lease the real property housing our regional call centers, business offices and warchouses
throughout our operating regions. Our headend facilities, signal reception sites and microwave facilities are located
on owned and leased parcels of land, and we generally own the towers on which certain of our equipment is located.
We own most of our service vehicles. We believe that our properties, both owned and leased, are in good condition
and are suitable and adequate for our operations.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Mediacom LLC, one of our wholly owned subsidiaries, is named as a defendant in a putative class action,
captioned Gary Ogg and Janice Ogg v. Mediacom LLC, pending in the Circuit Court of Clay County, Missouri,
originally filed in April 2001. The lawsuit alleges that Mediacom LLC, in areas where there was no cable franchise,
failed to obtain permission from landowners to place its fiber interconnection cable notwithstanding the possession
of agreements or permission from other third parties. While the parties continue to contest liability, there also
remains a dispute as to the proper measure of damages. Based on a report by their experts, the plaintiffs claim
compensatory damages of approximately $14.5 million. Legal fees, prejudgment interest, potential punitive damages
and other costs could increase that estimate to approximately $26.0 million. The plaintiffs have recently proposed an
alternative damage theory of $42.0 million in compensatory damages. We are unable to reasonably determine the
amount of our final liability in this lawsuit, as our experts have estimated our Hability to be within the range of
approximately $0.1 million to $2.3 million. This estimate does not include any estimate of damages for prejudgment
interest, attomneys’ fees or punitive damages. We believe, however, that the amount of such Hability, as stated by any
of the parties, would not have a material effect on our consolidated financial position, results of operations, cash
flows or business. There can be no assurance that the actual liability would not exceed this estimated range. As of
March 9, 2009, the trial commenced for the claim by the class representatives, Gary and Janice Ogg. Mediacom
LLC has tendered the lawsuit to our insurance carrier for defense and indemnification. The carrier has agreed to
defend Mediacom LLC under a reservation of rights, and a declaratory judgment action is pending regarding the
carrier’s defense and coverage responsibilities. Mediacom LLC intends to vigorously defend against any claims
made by the plaintiffs, including at trial, and on appeal, if necessary.

We are involved in various other legal actions arising in the ordinary course of business. In the opinion of
management, the ultimate disposition of these other matters wili not have a material adverse effect on our
consolidated financial position, results of operations, cash flows or business.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matters were submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2008.
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ITEM 4A. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The following Directors and Executive Officers are as of February 28, 2009.

Name Age Title

Rocco B. Commisso ....ccovcvenrverererenecranes 59 Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Mark E. Stephan .......c.ocooeeeveeeeeeeeeea 52 Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
Jobn G. Pascarelli .....oooooeveeoneeeceeceees 47 Executive Vice President, Operations

Italia Commisso Weinand .....c....coeeeeee.. 55 Senior Vice President, Programming & Human Resources
Joseph E. Young....ccveeercernvmnreececcceas 60 Senior Vice President, General Counsel & Secretary
Charles J. Bartolotta ..., 54 Senior Vice President, Customer Qperations

Calvin G. Craib....c.ooeeeereecee e 54 Senior Vice President, Business Development

Brian M. Walsh ....ccoooeiaiiiis 43 Senior Vice President & Corporate Controller
Thomas V. Reifenheiser ......cooccovcivcnnne. 73 Director

Natale 8. Ricciardi.....coceceeieceecvvecvveee. 60 Director

Robert L. Winikoff ..o 62 Director

Rocco B. Commisso has 30 years of experience with the cable industry and has served as our Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer since founding our predecessor company in July 1995, From 1986 to 1995, he served as
Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and a director of Cablevision Industries Corporation. Prior to that
time, Mr. Commisso served as Senior Vice President of Royal Bank of Canada’s affiliate in the United States from
1981, where he founded and directed a specialized lending group to media and communications companies.
Mr. Commisso began his association with the cable industry in 1978 at The Chase Manhattan Bank, where he
managed the bank’s lending activities to communications firms including the cable industry. He serves on the board
of directors and executive committees of the National Cable Television Association and Cable Television
Laboratories, Inc., and on the board of directors of C-SPAN and the National Italian American Foundation.
Mr. Commisso holds a Bachelor of Science in Industrial Engineering and a Master of Business Administration from
Columbia University.

Mark E. Stephan has 22 years of experience with the cable industry and has served as our Executive Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer since July 2005. Prior to that he was Executive Vice President, Chief Financial
Officer and Treasurer since November 2003 and our Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
since the commencement of our operations in March 1996. Before joining us, Mr. Stephan served as Vice President,
Finance for Cablevision Industries from July 1993. Prior to that time, Mr. Stephan served as Manager of the
telecommunications and media lending group of Royal Bank of Canada.

John G. Pascarelli has 28 years of experience in the cable industry and has served as our Executive Vice
President, Operations since November 2003. Prior to that he was our Senior Vice President, Marketing and
Consumer Services from June 2000 and our Vice President of Marketing from March 1998. Before joining us in
March 1998, Mr. Pascarelli served as Vice President, Marketing for Helicon Communications Corporation from
January 1996 to February 1998 and as Corporate Director of Marketing for Cablevision Industries from 1988 to
1995. Prior to that time, Mr. Pascarelli served in various marketing and system management capacities for
Continental Cablevision, Inc., Cablevision Systems and Storer Communications. Mr. Pascarelli is 2 member of the
board of directors of the Cable and Telecommunications Association for Marketing.

ltalia Commisso Weinand has 32 years of experience in the cable industry. Before joining us in April 1996,
Ms. Weinand served as Regional Manager for Comcast Corporation from July 1985. Prior to that time, Ms. Weinand
held various management positions with Tele-Communications, Inc., Times Mirror Cable and Time Warner, Inc.
Ms. Weinand is the sister of Mr. Commisso.

Joseph E. Young has 24 years of experience with the cable indusiry. Before joining us in November 2001 as
Senior Vice President, General Counsel, Mr. Young served as Executive Vice President, Legal and Business Affairs,
for LinkShare Corporation, an Internet-based provider of marketing services, from September 1999 to October 2001.
Prior to that time, he practiced corporate law with Baker & Botts, LLP from January 1995 to September 1999.
Previously, Mr. Young was a partner with the Law Offices of Jerome H. Kern and a partner with Shea & Gould.
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Charles J. Bartolotta has 26 years of experience in the cable industry. Before joining us in October 2000,
Mr. Bartolotta served as Division President for AT&T Broadband, LLC from July 1998, where he was responsible
for managing an operating division serving nearly three million customers. Prior to that time, he served as Regional
Vice President of Tele-Communications, Inc. from January 1997 and as Vice President and General Manager for
TKR Cable Company from 1989. Prior to that time, Mr. Bartolotta held various management positions with
Cablevision Systems Corporation.

Calvin G. Craib has 27 years of experience in the cable industry, and has served as our Senior Vice President,
Business Development since August 2001. He also assumed responsibility of Corporate Finance in June 2008, Prior
to that time, Mr. Craib was our Vice President, Business Development since April 1999. Before joining us in April
1999, he served as Vice President, Finance and Administration for Interactive Marketing Group from June 1997 to
December 1998 and as Senior Vice President, Operations, and Chief Financial Officer for Douglas Cormmunications
from January 1990 to May 1997. Prior to that time, Mr. Craib served in various financial management capacities at
Warner Amex Cable and Tribune Cable.

Brian M. Walsh has 21 years of experience in the cable industry and has served as our Senior Vice President
and Corporate Controller since February 2005. Prior to that time, he was our Senior Vice President, Financial
Operations from November 2003, our Vice President, Finance and Assistant to the Chairman from November 2001,
our Vice President and Corporate Controller from February 1998 and our Director of Accounting from November
1996. Before joining us in April 1996, Mr. Walsh held various management positions with Cablevision Industries
from 1988 to 1995.

Thomas V. Reifenheiser served for more than seven years as a Managing Director and Group Executive of the
Global Media and Telecom Group of Chase Securities Inc. until his retirement in September 2000. He joined Chase
in 1963 and had been the Global Media and Telecom Group Executive since 1977. He also had been a member of
the Management Committee of The Chase Manhattan Bank. Mr. Reifenheiser is also a member of the board of
directors of Cablevision Systems Corporation, Lamar Advertising Company and Citadel Broadcasting Corporation,

Natale §. Ricciardi has held various management positions with Pfizer Inc. for more than the past seven years.
M. Ricciardi joined Pfizer in 1972 and currently serves as Senior Vice President, Pfizer Inc. and President, Pfizer
Global Manufacturing, with responsibility for all of Pfizer’s manufacturing and supply activities. He is a member of
the Pfizer Executive Leadership Team.

Robert L. Winikoff has been a partner of the law firm of Sonnenschein Nath & Rosenthal, LLP since August
2000. Prior to that time, he was a partaner of the law firm of Cooperman Levitt Winikoff Lester & Newman, P.C. for
more than five years. Sonnenschein Nath & Rosenthal, LLP currently serves as our outside general counsel, and
prior to such representation, Cooperman Levitt Winikoff Lester & Newman, P.C. served as our outside general
counsel from 1995,
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PARTII

ITEMS5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our Class A common stock is traded on The Nasdag Global Select Market under the symbol “MCCC.” The
following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the high and low closing sales prices for our Class A common
stock as reported by The Nasdaq Global Select Market:

2008 2007
Low High Low High
First Quarter......ocooecevveveenrrercrennns $ 397 § 527 $ 7.54 $ 825
Second Quarter ........cccceereeeeenen. $§ 415 § 652 % 820 $10.03
Third Quarter ......c..oocoeveeeeeennne § 491 $ 840 $ 7.05 $ 1030
Fourth Quarter..........ccooeeeeneevrenn. $ 200 $§ 581 $ 3.93 $ 7.36

As of February 28, 2009, there were approximately 2,348 holders of record of our Class A common stock and 2
holders of record of our Class B common stock. The number of Class A stockholders does not include beneficial
owners holding shares through nominee names.

We have never declared or paid any dividends on our commen steck. We currently anticipate that we will
retain all of our future earnings for use in the expansion and operation of our business. Thus, we do not anticipate
paying any cash dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future. Qur future dividend policy will be
determined by our board of directors and will depend on various factors, including our results of operations,
financial condition, capital requirements and investment opportunities.

During the year ended December 31, 2008, we repurchased 4.8 million shares of our Class A common stock for
. an aggregate cost of $22.4 million. As of December 31, 2008, approximately $47.6 million remained available under
our stock repurchase program. We did not repurchase any Class A common stock during the three months ended
December 31, 2008.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

In the table below, we provide you with selected historical consolidated statement of operations data and cash
flow data for the years ended December 31, 2004 through 2008 and balance sheet data as of December 31, 2004
through 2008, which are derived from our audited consolidated financial statements (except other data and operating
. data).

See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.”

200879 2007 20064 2005 2004

(Amounts in thousands, except per share data and operating data)

Statement of Operations Data:

Revenues. . . $1,401,894 $1,293,375 §$1,210400 $1,098822 $1,057,226
Costs and expenses:
Service costs.. . 585,362 544,072 492 729 433,768 407,875
Selling, genera! and admlmstratwe expenses ......... 278,942 264,006 252,688 232,514 216,394
Corporate expenses. 30,824 27,637 25,445 22,287 19,276
Depreciation and amortization.........c.eovvevveeeerneenns 227,910 235,331 215,918 220,567 217,262
Operating income... 278,856 222,329 223,620 184,686 196,419
Interest expense, net (213,333) (239,015) (227,206) (208,264) {192,740)
Loss on early extmguishment of debt — — (35,831) (4,742) —
{Loss) gain on derivative mstrument.s net (54,363) . (22,902) (15,798) 12,555 16,125
(Loss) gain on sale of cable systems, net................ (21,308) ©1L079 — 2,628 5,885
Other expense, net............... - (9,133) (9,054) (9,973) (11,829) (12,061) .
’ (Loss) income before income taxes ........................ (19,281) (37,563) (65,188) (24,966) 13,628
Provision for income taxes. . (58,213) (57,566) (59,734) (197,262} (76)
Net (loss) income e —m—n—a et ———————————n——— $ {77,494) 3 (95,129} 3 (]24,922) $ (222,228) $ 13,552
Basic and diluted (loss) eammgs per share:D '
" Basic and diluted (loss) earnings per share............. $  (081) § (0.88) $ (1.13) § (1.90) § 0.11
Weighted average common shares outstanding"
Basic weighted average shares outstanding ................... 95,548 107,828 110,971 117,194 118,534
Diluted weighted average share outstanding............... 95,548 107,828 110,971 117,194 118,543
Balance Sheet Data (end of period):
Total assets Cttmtemeaneneeneneresenens $3,718,989  $3,615210 $3,652,350 $3,649498  $3,635,655
Total debt.. b emeemeen e e enneas $3,316,000 $3,215033  $3,144,599 $3,059.651  $3,009,632
Total stockholders’ (deficit) equity ....ocoeoeeeeevveceecene $ (346,644) § (253,089) $ (94,814 § 59107 § 293,512
Cash Flow Data:
Net cash flows provided by (used in):
Operating activifies......eesmivrrrsrnsesrarens . $ 268715 § 188792 § 176,905 §$ 179,095 § 224,611
Investing activities .......... 3 (289,825) § (202,335) § (210,235) § (2236000 § (177,424}
FInancing activities ......coeeresssesessnsseresrisesinsssreressesnnnes F 06883 3§ (3454 § 52434 § 37911 § (49127
Other Data:
Adjusted OIBDAD ... oo e ranssnsns $ S11,951  $ 462979 $ 444255 § 406,610 § 413,729
Adjusted QIBDA margin® 36.5% 35.8% 36.7% 37.0% 39.1%
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges™.........ccooovvveevviivenns — — — — 1.06
Operating Data: (end of period)
Estimated homes assed‘s’ .......................................... 2,854,000 2,836,000 2,829,000 2,807,000 2,785,000
Basic subscribers'® 1,318,000 1,324,600 1,380,000 1,423,000 1,458,000
Digital customers'” .. 643,000 557,000 528,000 494,000 396,000
HSD customers® ... ... 737,000 658,000 578,000 478,000 367,000
Phone customers™® . 248,000 185,000 105,000 22,000 —
CRGUSM s sarasaains 2,946,000 2,724,000 2,591,000 2,417,000 2,221,000

M

2)

Basic and diluted (loss) earnings per share is calculated based on the basic and diluted weighted average shares
outstanding, respectively.

“Adjusted OIBDA™ is not a financial measure calculated in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP) in the United States. We define Adjusted OIBDA as operating income before depreciation and
amortization and non-cash, share-based compensation charges.

Adjusted OIBDA is one of the primary measures used by management to evaluate our performance and to forecast
future results. It is also a significant performance measure in our annual incentive compensation programs. We
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believe Adjusted OIBDA is useful for investors because it enables them to access our performance in a manner
similar to the methods used by management, and provides a measure that can be used to analyze, value and compare
the companies in the cable industry, which may have different depreciation and amortization policies, as well as
different non-cash, share-based compensation programs. Adjusted OIBDA and similar measures are used in
calculating compliance with the covenants of our debt arrangements. A limitation of Adjusted OIBDA, however, is
that it excludes depreciation and amortization, which represents the periodic costs of certain capitalized tangible and
intangible assets used in generating revenues in our business. Management utilizes a separate process to budget,
measure and evaluate capital expenditures. In addition, Adjusted OIBDA has the limitation of not reflecting the
effect of our non-cash, share-based compensation charges.

Adjusted OIBDA should not be regarded as an alternative to either operating income or net income (loss) as an
indicator of operating performance nor should it be considered in isolation or a substitute for financial measures
prepared in accordance with GAAP. We believe that operating income is the most directly comparable GAAP -
financial measure to Adjusted OIBDA.

The following represents a reconciliation of Adjusted OIBDA to operating income, which is the most directly
comparable GAAP measure (dollars in thousands):

2008 - 2007 2006 2005 2004
Adjusted OIBDA ... $ 511,951 $462979  §444,255 § 406,616 §413,729
Non-cash, share-based compensation and other
share-based awards{A) ......ccoeeieiiininnnccns (5,185) (5,319) 4,717} (1,357) (48)
. Depreciation and amortization.............c.o..erererens (227910)  (235331) _(215918)  (220,567) _(217,262)
Operating MCOMIE ....oo.oceceeeee et $278,856  $222329  $223,620 5184686  $196419

™ Includes approximately $17, $20, $239, $24, and $48 for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007, 2006,
2005 and 2004, respectively, related to the issvance of other share-based awards.

®) Represents Adjusted OIBDA as a percentage of revenues. See note 2 above.

@ Barnings were insufficient to cover fixed charges by $20.7 million, $38.3 million, $66.1 million and $26.4 million

for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively. Refer to Exhibit 12.1.

©)  Represents an estimate of the number of single residence homes, apartments and condominium units passed by the
cable distribution network. Estimated homes passed is based on the best available information.

©  Represents a dwelling with one or more television sets that receives a package of over-the-air broadcast stations,

local access channels or certain satellite-delivered cable services. Accounts that are billed on a bulk basis, which
typically receive discounted rates, are converted into full-price equivalent basic subscribers by dividing total bulk
billed basic revenues of a particular system by the average cable rate charged to basic subscribers in that system.
This conversion method is consistent with the methodology used in determining payments to programmers. Basic
subscribers include connections to schools, libraries, local government offices and employee households that may
not be charged for limited and expanded cable services, but may be charged for digital cable, HSD, phone or other
services. Customers who exclusively purchase HSD and/or phone service are not counted as basic subscribers. Our
methodology of calculating the number of basic subscribers may not be identical to those used by other companies
offering similar services.

™ Represents customers that receive digital video services.

% Represents residential HSD customers and small to medium-sized commercial cable modem accounts billed at

higher rates than residential customers. Small to medium-sized commercial accounts generally represent customers
with bandwidth requirements of up to 20Mbps, and are converted to equivalent residential HSD customers by
dividing their associated revenues by the applicable residential rate. Qur HSD customers exclude large commercial
accounts. Our methodology of calculating HSD customers may not be identical to those used by other companies
offering similar services.

® Represents estimated number of homes to which we market phone service, and is based upon the best available

information.

49 Represents the sum of basic subscribers and digital, HSD and phone customers.

" Does not give effect to the completion of the Exchange Agreement on February 13, 2009. See Note 11 to our
consolidated financial statements for more information.

42 Effective January 1, 2006, we adopted SFAS No. 123(R). See Note 8 to our consolidated financial statements.
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ITEM7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Reference is made to the “Risk Factors™ in Item 1A for a discussion of important factors that could cause actual
results to differ from expectations and any of our forward-looking statements contained herein. The following
discussion should be read in conjunction with our audited consolidated financial statements as of and for the years
ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006.

Overview

We are the nation’s eighth largest cable company based on the number of basic video subscribers, and among
the leading cable operators focused on serving the smaller cities and towns in the United States. Through our
interactive broadband network, we provide our customers with a wide array of advanced products and services,
including video services such as VOD, HDTV and DVRs, in addition to HSD and phone service. We offer triple-
play bundles of video, HSD and voice to 91% of our estimated homes passed. Bundled products and services offer
our customers a single provider contact for ordering, provisioning, billing and customer care,

As of December 31, 2008, our cable systems passed an estimated 2.85 million homes and served 1.32 million
basic subscribers in 22 states. We provide digital video services to 643,000 customers, representing a digital
penetration of 48.8% of our basic subscribers; HSD service to 737,000 customers, representing a HSD penetration of
25.8% of our estimated homes passed; and phone service to 248,000 customers, representing a penetration of 9.5%
of our estimated marketable phone homes.

We evaluate our performance, in part, by measuring the number of RGUs we serve. As of December 31, 2008,
we served 2,95 million RGUs, representing an increase of 8.1% over the prior year.

Revenues, Costs and Expenses

Video revenues primarily represent monthly subscription fees charged to customers for our core cable products
and services (including basic and digital cable programming services, wire maintenance, equipment rental and
services to commercial establishments), pay-per-view charges, installation, reconnection and late payment fees and
other ancillary revenues. HSD revenues primarily represent monthly fees charged to customers, including small to
medium sized commercial establishments, for our HSD products and services and equipment rental fees, as well as
fees charged to medium to large sized businesses for our scalable, fiber- based enterprise network products and
services. Phone revenues primarily represent monthly fees charged to customers. Advertising revenues represent the
sale of advertising time on various channels.

Significant service costs include: programming expenses; employee expenses related to wages and salaries of
technical personnel who maintain our cable network, perform customer installation activities and provide customer
support; HSD costs, including costs of bandwidth connectivity and customer provisioning; phone service costs,
including delivery and other expenses; and field operating costs, including outside contractors, vehicle, utilities and
pole rental expenses. :

Video programming costs, which are generally paid on a per subscriber basis, represent our largest single
expense and have historically increased due to both increases in the rates charged for existing programming services
and the introduction of new programming services to our customers. These costs are expected to continue to grow
principally because of contractral unit rate increases and the increasing demands of television broadcast station
owners for retransmission consent fees. As a consequence, it is expected that our video gross margins will decline as
increases in programming costs outpace growth in video revenues.

Significant selling, general and administrative expenses include: wages and salaries for our call centers,
customer service and support and administrative personnel; franchise fees and taxes; marketing; bad debt; billing;
advertising; and office costs related to telecommunications and office administration.

Corporate expenses reflect compensation of corporate employees and other corporate overhead.
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Adjusted OIBDA

We define Adjusted OIBDA as operating income before depreciation and ameortization and non-cash, share-
based compensation charges. Adjusted OIBDA is one of the primary measures used by management to evaluate our
performance and to forecast future results but is not a financial measure calculated in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) in the United States. It is also a significant performance measure in our
annual incentive compensation programs. We believe Adjusted OIBDA is useful for investors because it enables
them to assess our performance in a manner similar to the methods used by management, and provides a measure
that can be used to analyze, value and compare the companies in the cable industry, which may have different
depreciation and amortization policies, as well as different non-cash, share-based compensation programs. Adjusted
OIBDA and similar measures are used in calculating compliance with the covenants of our debt arrangements. A
limitation of Adjusted OIBDA, however, is that it excludes depreciation and amortization, which represents the
periodic costs of certain capitalized tangible and intangible assets used in generating revenues in our business.
Management utilizes a separate process to budget, measure and evaluate capital expenditures. In addition, Adjusted
OIBDA has the limitation of not reflecting the effect of the non-cash, share-based compensation charges.

Adjusted OIBDA should not be regarded as an alternative to either operating income or net income (foss) as an
indicator of operating performance nor should it be considered in isolation or as a substitute for financial measures
prepared in accordance with GAAP. We believe that operating income is the most directly comparable GAAP
financial measure to Adjusted OIBDA.

" Actual Results of Operations
Year Ended December 31, 2008 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2007
The following table sets forth the unaudited consolidated statements of operations for the years ended

December 31, 2008 and 2007 (dollars in thousands and percentage changes that are not meaningful are

marked NM}:

Year Ended
December 31,
2008 2007 . $ Change % Change
REVEIIUES. e.vveeeeeereeeeseereeresseserssssernesrevasensessesnesnsessees $1,401,894 $1,293,375 $ 108,519 8.4%
Costs and expenses:
Service costs (exclusive of depreciation and
AMOTHZALION).«.eveeveniereiceseerenmereseasmresacerae s 585,362 544,072 - 41,290 7.6%
Selling, general and administrative expenses .... 278,942 264,006 14,936 5.7%
COrpOTate EXPENSES...ieveeeeremeeceserrenrraransasnreens 30,824 27,637 3,187 11.5%
Depreciation and amortization..............cccocc....... 227,910 235,331 (7,421) (B3.2)%
Operating iNCOMIE ...ovvvvveereereerecaeeeeemrreercesenns 278,856 222,329 56,527 25.4%
Interest expense, Net ......ccccveeeveecccevcecrneeerverree e, (213,333) (239,015) 25,682 (10.7Y%
Loss on derivatives, net ......cooeoeeenceenciciane {54,363) (22,902) (31,461) NM
{Loss) gain on sale of cable systems, net............... (21,308) 11,679 (32,387 NM
Other EXPENSE, BE .....vvveeeeeeemvrevenveseemseassmsanrnns (9,133) (9,054) (79 0.9%
Loss before provision for income taxes................. (19,281) (37,563) 18,282 (48. 1Y%
Provision for iNCOME tAXES .v.uremmrerremremeererieeceenns (58,213)  ~ (57,566) (647) 1.1%
INEELOSS --oe oo ene s enenon $ (774949 3 (95,129) § 17,635 (18.5)%
Adjusted OIBDA .......cooreeeeeeeesecrseseoeeessesecsssorsees $ 511951 % 462979 § 48972 10.6%
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The following represents a reconciliation of Adjusted OIBDA to operating income, which is the most directly
comparable GAAP measure (dollars in thousands):

Year Ended
December 31,
2008 2007 $ Change % Change

Adjusted OIBDA ..o $ 511,951 $ 462,979 $ 48972 10.6%
Non-cash, share-based compensation and other

share-based awards™ ..o (5,185) (5,319) 134 (2.5)%
Depreciation and amortization.............c..ccccoceenn.... (227,910) (235,331) 7421 3.2)%
Operating inCOME ......covovvvurerireereiia e $ 278,856 $ 222,329 $ 56,527 25.4%

®  Includes approximately $17 and $20 for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively, related
to the issuance of other share-based awards.

Revenues

The following table sets forth revenue and selected subscriber, customer and average monthly revenue statistics
for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 (dollars in thousands, except per subscriber data):

Year Ended
December 31,
2008 2007 $ Change % Change
VIABO ettt et e $ 921,098 $ 891,594 S 29,504 33%
HSD ..ot s 324,764 278,853 45911 16.5%
PRODE oot 89,970 55,892 34,078 61.0%
AVErtiSINE ..ot 66,062 67,036 (974) (1.5)%
Total........... Heaeree e e e st bbaste et e e en e s e sesaeenren $1,401,894 $1,293,375 $ 108,519 8.4%
Year Ended
December 31, Increase/
2008 2007 (Decrease)} % Change
Basic subscribers ._......ococveieeeeee e 1,318,000 1,324,000 (6,000) (0.5)%
Digital CUSTOMEIS . ovemeeeeeeeee e, 643,000 557,000 86,000 15.4%
HSD CUSIOMETS . oe et 737,000 658,000 79,000 12.0%
PhONE CUSLOIIETS ........evevereccsecc e seeeeeeerereenes 248,000 185,000 63,000 34.1%
RGUS™ oot 2,946,000 2,724,000 222,000 8.1%
Average total monthly revenue per basic

subscriber™® $ 88.44 $  79.72 $ 8.72 10.9%

M RGUs represent the total of basic subscribers and digital, HSD and phone customers.
@ Represents total average monthly revenues for the year divided by total average basic subscribers during such
period.

Revenues rose 8.4%, largely attributable to the growth in our HSD and phone customers, as well as basic video
price increases. RGUs grew 8.1% and average total monthly revenue per basic subscriber was 10.9% higher than the
prior year. :
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Video revenues increased 3.3%, primarily due to basic video rate increases and customer growth in our
advanced video products and services, offset in part by a lower number of basic subscribers. During the year ended
December 31, 2008, we lost 6,000 basic subscribers, compared to a reduction of 56,000 basic subscribers in the prior
year, which includes a significant number of basic subscribers lost in connection with the retransmission consent
dispute with an owner of a major television broadcast group and the sale during the period of cable systems serving
on 2 net basis 6,300 basic subscribers. Digital customers grew by 86,000, as compared to an increase of 29,000 in
the prior year. We ended the year with 643,000 digital customers, which represents a 48.8% penetration of basic
subscribers. As of December 31, 2008, 33.2% of digital customers received DVR and/or HDTV services, as
compared to 29.1% in the prior year.

HSD revenues rose 16.5%, principally due to a 12.0% increase in HSD customers and, to a lesser extent,
growth in our enterprise network products and services. HSD customers grew by 79,000, as compared to a gain of
80,000 in the prior year. We ended the year with 737,000 customers, or a 25.8% penetration of estimated homes
passed.

Phone revenues grew 61.0%, primarily due to a 34.1% increase in phone customers and, to a lesser extent, a
reduction in discounted pricing. Phone customers grew by 63,000, as compared (o a gain of 80,000 in the prior year.
We ended the year with 248,000 customers, which represents a 9.5% penetration of our estimated marketable phone
homes. As of December 31, 2008, our phone service was marketed to 91% of our 2.85 million estimated homes
passed.

Advertising revenues decreased 1.5%, largely as a result of a sharp decrease in automotive advertising and, to a
lesser extent, an unfavorable comparison to the prior year in which we benefitted from political advertising in
certain of our service areas.

Costs and Expenses

Service costs rose 7.6%, primarily due to higher programming, phone service and field operating expenses,
offset in part by lower HSD service costs. Programming expenses grew 7.6%, principally as a result of higher
contractual rates charged by our programming vendors. Phone service costs rose 46.6%, mainly due to the growth in
phone customers. Field operating expenses grew 13.4%, primarily due to greater vehicle fuel and repair expenses

. and lower capitalization of overhead costs, offset in part by non-recurring expenses in the prior year relating to the
retransmission consent dispute noted above and lower insurance costs. HSD expenses decreased 23.3% due to a
reduction in product delivery costs, offset in part by HSD customer growth. Service costs as a percentage of
revenues were 41.8% and 42.1% for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively. -

Selling, general and administrative expenses rose 5.7%, principally due to higher expenses related to marketing
and customer service employee costs, offset in part by a decrease in billing expenses. Marketing expenses grew
12.8%, primarily due to higher staffing levels, more frequent direct mailing campaigns, greater expenses tied to
sales activity and greater use of third-party sales support, offset in part by a reduction in other advertising. Customer
service employee costs rose 14.9% as a result of higher staffing levels at our call centers. Billing expenses fell 5.0%,
primarily due to more favorable rates charged by our billing service provider. Selling, general and administrative
expenses as a percentage of revenues were 19.9% and 20.4% for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007,
respectively.

Corporate expenses rose 11.5%, principally due to higher staffing levels. Corporate expenses as a percentage of
revenues were 2.2% and 2.1% for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Depreciation and amortization decreased 3.2%, largely as a result of an increase in the useful lives of certain
fixed assets, offset in part by increased deployment of shorter-lived customer premise equipment.

Adjusted OIBDA

Adjusted OIBDA rose 10.6%, due to growth in HSD, phone and video revenues, offset in part by higher service
costs and, to a lesser extent, selling, general and administrative expenses.
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Operating Income
Operating income grew 25.4%, primarily due to the increase in Adjusted OIBDA.
Interest Expense, Net

Interest expense, net, decreased 10.7%, primarily due to lower market interest rates on variable rate debt, offset
in part by higher average indebtedness.

Loss on Derivatives, Net

We enter into interest rate exchange agreements, or “interest rate swaps,” with counterparties to fix the interest
rate on a portion of our variable rate debt to reduce the potential volatility in our interest expense that would
otherwise result from changes in variable market interest rates. As of December 31, 2008, we had interest rate swaps
with an aggregate notional amount of $2.3 billion, of which $1.0 billion and $0.1 billion are forward starting swaps,
which commence during the years ending December 31, 2009 and 2010, respectively. These swaps have not been
designated as hedges for accounting purposes. The changes in their mark-to-market values are derived primarily
from changes in market interest rates and the decrease in their time to maturity. As a result of the quarterly mark-to-
market valuation of these interest rate swaps, we recorded losses on derivatives amounting to $54.4 million and
$22.9 million, based upon information provided by our counterparties, for the years ended December 31, 2008 and
2007, respectively.

(Loss) Gain on Sale of Cable Systems, Net

During the year ended December 31, 2008, there was a $21.3 million loss on cable systems, principally due to a
$17.7 million non-cash write-down in connection with the sale of certain cable systems in Western North Carolina
and $4.0 million of related transaction costs paid, offset in part by miscellaneous net gains of $0.4 million. During
the year ended December 31, 2007, we sold a cable system for $32.4 million and recorded a net gain on sale of
$11.1 million.

Other Expense, Net

Other expense, net was $9.1 million for each of the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007. During the year
ended December 31, 2008, other expense, net, included $4.6 million of revolving credit facility commitment fees
and $4.1 million of deferred financing costs: During the year ended December 31, 2007, other expense, net, included
$4.2 million of revolving credit facility commitment fees and $4.0 million of deferred financing costs.

Provision for Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes was approximately $58.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2008, as
compared to a provision for income taxes of $57.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2007. During the year
ended December 31, 2008, based on our assessment of the facts and circumstances, we determined that an additional
portion of our deferred tax assets from net operating loss carryforwards will not be realized under the more-likely-
than-not standard required by SFAS No. 109, “dccounting for Income Taxes.” As a result, we increased our
valuation allowance and recognized a $58.2 million corresponding non-cash charge to income tax expense for the
year ended December 31, 2008.

We periodically assess. the likelihood of realization of our deferred tax assets considering all available
evidence, both positive and negative, including our most recent performance, the scheduled reversal of deferred tax
liabilities, our forecast of taxable income in future periods and the availability of prudent tax planning strategies. As
a result of these assessments in prior periods and the current period, we have established valuation allowances on a
portion of our deferred tax assets due to the uncertainty surrounding the realization of these assets.

Net Loss

As a result of the factors described above, we incurred a net loss for the year ended December 31, 2008 of
$77.5 million, as compared to a net loss of $95.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2007.
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Year Ended December 31, 2007 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2006

The following table sets forth the unaudited consolidated statements of operations for the years ended
December 31, 2007 and 2006 (dollars in thousands and percentage changes that are not meaningful are marked
NM):

Year Ended
December 31,
2007 2006 $ Change % Change

REVEIIUES. . -e.eeeve oo ereeevaecman v sameeceeosesssoeasssssasenesaeens $1,293,375  $1,210400 § 82975 6.9%
Costs and expenses:

Service costs (exclusive of depreciation and

AMOTHZAION). ..ot ceeeeeeveneesnseenas 544,072 492,729 51,343 10.4%

Selling, general and administrative expenses .......... 264,006 252,688 11,318 45%

COTPOIALE EXPENSES...verrerermaeresrresaessnssmemareressssees 27,637 25,445 2,192 8.6%

Depreciation and armortization.................c..e..eeveeen.. 235,331 215,918 19,413 9.0%
OpErating iNCOME ..........ocevvvreeseessreseesrsrssnsesssseenens 222,329 223,620 {1,291) 0.6)%
INtETeSt EXPENSE, NEL -....vmreieeercerrecmssecssecisesenseeesssneens (239,015) (227,206) (11,809) 5.2%
Loss on early extinguishment of debt........c.....covveruen.. - (35.831) 35,831 NM
Loss on derivatives, TIEE ... vevcereeeee e scrrrrescanenereeenen (22,902) (15,798) (7,104) 45.0%
Gain on sale of cable Systems, N6t .......co.eveemeecmreeiinnn, 11,079 — 11,079 NM
Oher EXPENSE - ocvvveertet et sierasass e rss e e oe - (9,054) (9,973) 919 (9.2)%
Loss before provision for income taxes...........veveeovene (37,563) (65,188) 27,625 (42.4)%
Provision for inCOME taXes .......coooveevvuereereeverereeneceness (975566) (59,734) 2,168 (3.6)%
NEE 0SS . ooereeeeeecee vt eeeece st e ss st seecen s erase s son $ 95,129y $(124922y 5§ 29,793 (23.8Y%
Adjusted OIBDA .....ooooommereeeeeeeeereiee e eeeessesansnne $ 462,979  $ 444255 % 18,724 4.2%

The following represents a reconciliation of Adjusted OIBDA to operating income {dollars in thousands):

Year Ended
December 31,
2007 2006 $ Change % Change

Adjusted OIBDA ....covemmoomeeeeereeeeeeene oo seensnne. $ 462979 % 444255 § 18724 4.2%
Non-cash, share-based compensation and other '

share-based awards™ _........co.coooeeeerreieeeie (5,319) (4,717) (602) 12.8%
Depreciation and amortization........ooereeeeeneesceceaeeee (235,331) (215,918) (19413) 9.0%
Operating iNCOME ........covveercieccciecessrmeestsse e reccnrasaes § 222,329 $ 223,620 5 (1,291 0.6)%

M “Includes approximately $20 and $239 for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, related to
the issuance of other share-based awards.
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Revenues

The following table sets forth revenue, and selected subscriber, customer and average monthly revenue
statistics for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 (dollars in thousands, except per subscriber data):

Year Ended
December 31,
2007 2006 $ Change % Change
VIR0 1ot an $ 891,594 $ 881,530 $ 10,064 1.1%
HSD s 278,853 237,542 41,311 17.4%
PRONE ..ottt nees 55,892 26,996 28,896 107.0%
AAVETHISHIZ ..o e e eaers e e ssenee 67,036 64,332 2,704 4.2%
TOLAL oot e et $1,293,375 $1,210,400 5 82975 6.9%
Year Ended
December 31, Increase/
2007 2006 {Decrease) % Change
Basic subSCribers .......oevieeeeiei et e 1,324,000 1,380,000 (56,000} (4.1)%
Digital CUSIOMETS ...coveeeeeeerec e e 557,000 528,000 29,000 5.5%
HSD CUSOMETS 1. oo reeenn 658,000 578,000 80,000 13.8%
PRONE CUSLOMETS -....oceoeeeveevoeee e veresseresseeeeseseereseeenns 185,000 105,000 80,000 76.2%
RGUS™ ..o s s s e 2,724,000 2,591,000 133,000 5.1%
Average total monthly revenue per basic
SUBSCIIBEI™ ... eese oo e £ ™72 8 7197 % 1.75 10.8%

M RGUs represent the total of basic snbscribers and digital, HSD and phone customers.

@ Represents total average monthly revenues for the year divided by total average basic subscribers during such
period.

Revenues rose 6.9% year-over-year, largely attributable to the growth in our HSD and phone customers. RGUs
grew 5.1% and average total monthly revenue per RGU was 0.9% higher than the prior year,

Video revenues increased 1.1%, due to higher service fees from our advanced video products and services such
as DVRs and HDTV, offset by a lower number of basic subscribers. During the year ended December 31, 2007, we
lost 56,000 basic subscribers, including a significant number of basic subscribers lost in connection with the
retransmission consent dispute with an owner of a major television broadcast group, and the sale of the period of
cable systems serving on a net basis 6,300 basic subscribers, as compared to a loss of 43,000 basic subscribers in the
prior year. Digital customers grew by 29,000, as compared to an increase of 34,000 in the prior year. We ended the
year with 557,000 digital customers, representing a 42.1% penetration of basic subscribers. As of December 31,
2007, 29.1% of digital customers received DVR and/or HDTV services, as compared to 20.0% in the prior year.

HSD revenues rose 17.4%, primarily due to a 13.8% increasc in HSD customers. HSD customers grew by
80,000, as compared to a gain of 100,000 in the prior year, ending the year with 658,000 customers, or a 23.2%
penetration of estimated homes passed.

Phone revenues grew 107.0%, primarily due to a 76.2% increase in phone customers. Phone customers grew by
80,000, as compared to a gain of 83,000 in the prior year, ending the year with 185,000 customers, or a 7.3%
penetration of estimated marketable phone homes.

Advertising revenues increased by 4.2%, as a result of stronger national advertising sales, despite a meaningful
decline in political advertising from the prior year.
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Costs and Expenses

Service costs rose 10.4%, primarily due to customer growth in our phone and HSD services and increases in
programming and field operating expenses. Recurring expenses related to our phone and HSD services grew 43.0%,
commensurate with the significant increase of our phone and HSD customers. Programming expense rose 3.6%,
principally as a result of higher unit costs charged by our programming vendors, offset in part by a lower number of
basic subscribers. Field operating costs rose 14.0%, primarily as a result of higher outside contractor usage,
increases in utility, fuel and vehicle maintenance costs, costs associated with our mobile workforce management
system and the purchase of antennas for distribution to our customers during the aforementioned retransmission
consent dispute. Service costs as a percentage of revenues were 42.1% and 40.7% for the years ended December 31,
2007 and 2006, respectively.

Selling, general and administrative expenses rose 4.5%, principally due to higher marketing, bad debt and
billing expenses, offset in part by reductions in telecomnmunication and employee benefit costs. Marketing costs rose
by 14.5%, largely due to increases in direct mailing campaigns, higher salaries, sales commissions and recruiting
costs and a greater use of outside contracted sales personnel. Bad debt expenses grew by 17.5%, primarily due to
higher average write-offs per delinquent account, unusually low write-offs of uncollectable accounts in the prior
year and increased collection expense. Billing expenses rose by 5.1%, largely due to increased processing, bank and
credit card fees. Selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage of revenues were 20.4% and 20.9% for
the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Corporate expenses rose 8.6%, principally due to increases in non-cash, share-based compensation and legal
fees. Corporate expenses as a percentage of revenues were 2.1% for each of the years ended December 31, 2007 and
2006.

Depreciation and amortization increased 9.0%, primarily due to increased deployment of customer premise
equipment and related installation activities.

Adjusted OIBDA

Adjusted OTBDA rose 4.2%, due to revenue growth, especially in HSD and phone, offset in part by increases in
service costs and selling, general and administrative expenses.

Operating Income

Operating income decreased 0.6% year-over-year, largely due to higher depreciation and ameortization and
service costs, substantially offset by the growth in Adjusted OIBDA.

Interest Expense, Net

Interest expense, net, increased by 5.2%, primarily due to higher average indebtedness, the expiration of certain
interest rate hedging agreements with favorable rates and higher market interest rates on variable rate debt.

Loss on Derivatives, Net

" As of December 31, 2007, we had interest rate swaps with an aggregate notional amount of $1.0 billion. These
swaps have not been designated as hedges for accounting purposes. The changes in their mark-to-market values are
derived primarily from changes in market interest rates and the decrease in their time to maturity. As a result of the
quarterly mark-to-market valuation of these interest rate swaps, we recorded losses on derivatives amounting to
$22.9 million and $15.8 million, based upon information provided by our counterpartles for the years ended
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Loss on Early Extinguishment of Debt

We incurred a loss of $35.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2006, as a result of our redemption of our
11% senior notes due 2013.
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Provision for Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes was approximately $57.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2007, as
compared to a provision for income taxes of $59.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2006. During the year
ended December 31, 2007, based on our assessment of the facts and circumstances, we determined that an additional
portion of our deferred tax assets from net operating loss carryforwards will not be realized under the more-likely-
than-not standard required by SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes.” As a result, we increased our
valuation allowance and recognized a $57.3 million corresponding non-cash charge to income tax expense for the
year ended December 31, 2007,

Net Loss

‘As a result of the factors described above, we incurred a net loss for the year ended December 31, 2007 of
$95.1 million, as compared to a net loss of $124.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2006.

Liguidity and Capital Resources
Overview

We have invested, and will continue to invest, in our network to enhance our reliability and capacity in
customer growth, and in the further deployment of advanced product and services. Our capital spending today is
devoted primarily to customer growth and the deployment of advanced services. We have a high level of
indebtedness and incur significant amounts of interest expense each year. We believe that we will meet interest
expense and principal payments, capital spending and other requirements through a combination of our net cash
flows from operating activities, borrowing availability under our bank credit facilities, and our ability to secure
future external financing. However, there is no assurance that we will be able to obtain sufficient future financing,
or, if we were able to do so, that the terms would be favorable to us.

As of December 31, 2008, our total debt was $3.316 billion. Of this-amount, $124.5 million matures during the
year ending December 31, 2009. During the year ended December 31, 2008, we paid cash interest of $209.2 million,
net of capitalized interest. As of December 31, 2008, about 70% of our outstanding indebtedness was at fixed
interest rates or subject to interest rate protection.

Recent Developments in the Credit Markets

In light of the unprecedented volatility in financial markets, we continue to assess the impact, if any, of recent
market developments, including the bankruptey, restructuring or merging of certain banks and investment banks on
our financial position. These assessments include a review of our continued access to liquidity in the credit markets
and counterparty creditworthiness.

In this severely tightened credit environment, we believe we have sufficient liquidity to meet our requirements
over the next two years. We fund our liquidity needs for capital investment, working capital, and other financial
commitments through cash flow from continuing operations and available revolving credit commitments
aggregating $762.2 million as of December 31, 2008. We have $124.5 million of debt maturities in 2009 and
$92.0 million of debt maturities in 2010. At this time, we are not aware of any of our revolver banks being in a
positton where they would be unable to fund borrowings made under our revolving credit commitments. The turmoil
in the financial markets may create additional risks in the foreseeable future, including the failure of additional
banks, which could reduce amounts available to us under our revolving credit commitments. If the current economic
conditions were to persist or worsen, we may not be able to replace the liquidity lost as each revolving credit facility
expires, or refinance outstanding balances on maturing revolving credit facilities, term loans or senior notes at all or
on acceptable terms. Even if we can secure refinancing, if prevailing credit market conditions persist or worsen, we
would likely pay considerably higher interest rates on any refinancing or new financing than those we currently pay.
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Bank Credit Facilities

We own our cable systems through two principal subsidiaries, Mediacom LLC and Mediacom Broadband LLC.
The operating subsidiaries of Mediacom LLC (“LLC Group”) have a $1.217 billion bank credit facility (the “LLC
Credit Facility™) expiring in 2015, of which $895.0 million was outstanding as of December 31, 2008, The LLC
Credit Facility consists of a $400.0 million revolving credit commitment, a $180.0 million term loan and a
$637.0 million term loan, The operating subsidiaries of Mediacom Broadband LLC (“Broadband Group™) have a
$1.755 billion bank credit facility (the “Broadband Credit Facility”) expiring in 2016, of which $1.296 billion was
outstanding as of December 31, 2008. The Broadband Credit Facility consists of a $516.7 million revolving credit
commitment, a $106.5 million term loan, a $784.0 million term loan and a $348.3 million term loan. Continued
access to our credit facilities is subject to our remaining in compliance with the covenants of these credit facilities,
including covenants tied to our operating performance, principally the requirement that we maintain a maximum
ratio of total senior debt to cash flow, as defined in our credit agreements, of 6.0 to 1.0. The average interest rates on
outstanding debt under the bank credit facilities as of December 31, 2008 and 2007 were 4.3% and 6.7%,
respectively, including the effect of the interest rate exchange agreements discussed below.

As of December 31, 2008, we had unused revolving credit commitments of approximately $762.2 million, all
of which could be borrowed and used for general corporate purposes based on the terms and cenditions of our debt
arrangements. As of the same date, $86.4 million of unused revolving credit commitments were subject to scheduled
reductions terminating on March 31, 2010; $311.8 million and $364.0 million of our unused credit commitments
expire on September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2012, respectively, and are not subject to scheduled reductions
prior to maturity. Giving pro forma effect to the completion of the Exchange Agreement on February 13, 2009, we
had wnused revolving credit commitments of approximately $652.2 million as of December 31, 2008.

The LLC Credit Facility is collateralized by LLC Group’s pledge of all its ownership interests in the operating
subsidiaries owned by LLC Group and is guaranteed by LLC Group on a limited recourse basis to the extent of such
ownership interests. The Broadband Credit Facility is collateralized by Broadband Group’s pledge of all its
ownership interests in the operating subsidiaries owned by Broadband Group and is guaranteed by Broadband Group
on a limited recourse basis to the extent of such ownership interests.

As of December 31, 2008, approximately $19.3 million of letters of credit were issued under our bank credit
facilities to various parties as collateral for our performance relating to insurance and franchise requirements.

Interest Rate Swaps

We use interest rate exchange agreements, or interest rate swaps, to fix the applicable Eurodollar portion of
debt under our Broadband and LLC Credit Facilities. As of December 31, 2008, we had cuirent interest rate swaps
with various banks pursuant to which the interest rate on $1.2 billion is fixed at a weighted average rate of
approximately 4.8%. As of the same date, about 70% of our outstanding indebtedness was at fixed interest rates or
subject to inferest rate protection. These agreements have been accounted for on a mark-to-market basis as of, and
for the year ended December 31, 2008. Our current interest rate swaps are scheduled to expire in the amounts of:
$800 million, $300 million and $100 million during the years ended December 31, 2009, 2010 and 2011,
respectively. ‘

In 2008, we entered into forward starting interest rate swaps that fixed rates for two years at a weighted average
of approximately 3.2% on $400.0 million of floating rate debt, commencing in 2009 and approximately 2.9% on
$100.0 million of floating rate debt, commencing in 2010. We also entered forward starting interest rate swaps that
fixed rates for three years at a weighted average rate of approximately 3.3% on $600.0 million of floating rate debt,
commencing in 2009. These agreements have been accounted for on a mark-to-market basis as of, and for the year
ended December 31, 2008,

Although we may be exposed to future losses in the event of counterparties’ non-performance, we do not
expect such losses, if any, to be material.
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Senior Notes

We have issued senior notes through Mediacom LLC and Mediacom Broadband LLC totaling $1.125 billion as
of December 31, 2008. The indentures governing our senior notes also contain financial and other covenants, though
they are generally less restrictive than those found in our bank credit facilities and do not require us to maintain any
- financial ratios. Principal covenants include a limitation on the incurrence of additional indebtedness based upon a
maximum ratio of total indebtedness to cash flow, as defined in these debt agreements, ranging from 7.0 te 1.0 at
Mediacom LLC to 8.5 to 1.0 at Mediacom Broadband. These agreements also contain limitations on dividends,
investments and distributions.

Covenant Compliance and Debt Ratings

For all periods through December 31, 2008, we were in compliance with all of the covenants under our bank
credit facilities and senior note arrangements. We believe that we will not have any difficulty complying with any of
the applicable covenants in the foreseeable future.

Our future access to the debt markets and the terms and conditions we receive are influenced by our debt
ratings. Our corporate credit ratings are B1, with a stable outlook, by Moodys, and B+, with a stable outlook, by
Standard and Poors. There are no covenants, events of default, borrowing conditions or other terms in our credit
facilities or our other debt arrangements that are based on changes in our credit ratings assigned by any rating
agency. Any future downgrade to our credit ratings could increase the interest rate on future debt issuance and
adversely impact our ability to raise additional funds. '

Operating Activities

Net cash. flows provided by operating activities were $268.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2008,
primarily due to Adjusted OIBDA of $512.0 million, offset in part by interest expense of $213.3 million and the
$22.4 million net change in our operating assets and liabilities. The net change in our operating assets and labilities
was principally due to a decrease in accounts payable and accrued expenses of $22.0 million and a decrease of other
non-current labilities of $3.2 million, offset in part by an increase in deferred revenue of $3.3 million.

Net cash flows provided by operating activities were $188.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2007,
primarily due to Adjusted OIBDA of $463.0 million, offset in part by interest expense of $239.0 million and the
$30.8 million net change in our operating assets and labilities. The net change in our operating assets and liabilities
was primarily due to an decrease in accounts payable and accrued expenses of $21.8 million, an increase in our
accounts receivable, net, of $6.3 million, an increase in our prepaid expenses and other assets of $5.4 million, offset
in part by an increase in deferred revenue of $4.7 miilion.

Investing Activities

Net cash flows used in investing activities were $289.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2008. Capital
expenditures were higher by $62.4 million over the prior year, and represented all of the net cash flows used in
investing activities. The increase in capital expenditures was largely due to higher spending on customer premise
equipment as a result of customer growth, upgrades and rebuilds of existing plant to increase bandwidth capacity
and scalable infrastructure for digital equipment. In 2009, we expect to see a reduction in capital expenditures of
$55 — $70 million, primarily due to the completion in 2008 of non-recurring projects related to system upgrades,
all-digital system launches and the broadcast digital transition, as well as lower spending on -customer premise
equipment,

Net cash flows used in investing activities were $202.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2007, a
decrease of $7.9 million over the prior year. Capital expenditures of $227.4 million represented most of the net cash
flows used in investing activities and were offset in part by proceeds received from the sale of cable systems, net of
acquisitions, of approximately $25.1 million. The increase in capital expenditures was primarily due to higher
spending on customer premise equipment and related installation activities as a result of customer growth, as well as
on scalable infrastructure for HSD and digital equipment.
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Financing Activities

Net cash flows provided by financing activities were $68.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2008,
principally due to net bank financing of $101.0 million, offset in part by repurchases of our Class A common stock
totaling $22.4 million and financing costs of $10.9 million.

Net cash flows used in financing activities were $3.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2007, primarily
due to repurchases of our Class A commeon stock totaling $69.0 million and other financing activities of
$5.8 million, which were funded by net bank financing of $70.4 million.

On September 7, 2008, we entered into a Share Exchange Agreement (the “Exchange Agreement”) with
Shivers Investments, LLC (“Shivers”) and Shivers Trading & Operating Company (“STOC”). Both STOC and
Shivers are affiliates of Morris Communications Company, LL.C (“Morris Communications™}. STOC, Shivers and
Morris Communications are controlled by William S. Morris I1I, who together with another Morris Communications
representative, Craig S. Mitchell, held two seats on our Board of Directors.

On February 13, 2009, we completed the Exchange Agreement pursuant 1o which we exchanged 100% of the
shares of stock of a wholly-owned subsidiary, which held approximately $110 million of cash and non-strategic
cable systems serving approximately 25,000 basic subscribers, for 28,309,674 shares of Mediacom Class A common
stock held by Shivers Investments. As of December 31, 2008, after giving effect to the completion of this
transaction, our total Class A and Class B outstanding shares were approximately 66.5 million. Effective upon
closing of the transaction, Messrs. Morris and Mitchell resigned from our Board of Directors.

Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments
The following table summarizes our contractual obligations and commercial commitments, and the effects they

are expected to have on our liquidity and cash flow, for the five years subsequent to December 31, 2008 and
thereafter (dollars in thousands)*:

Operating Interest Purchase
Debt Leases Expense!”  Obligations® Total
200D e $ 124,500 $ 6212 % 195313 $ 49,101 § 375,126
2010-200] e 365,000 9,930 339,666 23,152 737,748
2012-2013 s 647,250 5,282 236,507 250 889,289
Thereafter ... 2,179,250 8,531 145,919 — 2,333,700

$3,316,000 29955 § 917405 § 72,503  § 4,335,863

* Refer to Note 7 to our consolidated financial statements for a discussion of our long-term debt, and to Note 12
for a discussion of our operating leases and other commitments and contingencies,

' Interest payments on floating rate debt and interest rate swaps are estimated using amounts outstanding as of
December 31, 2008 and the average interest rates applicable under such debt obligations.

@ We have contracts with programmers who provide video programming services to our subscribers, Qur

coniracts typically provide that we have an obligation to purchase video programming for our subscribers as
long as we deliver cable services to such subscribers. We have no obligation to purchase these services if we are
not providing cable services, except when we do not have the right to cancel the underlying contract or for
contracts with a guaranteed minimum commitment. We have included such amounts in our Purchase
Obligations above, as follows: $18.4 million for 2009, $0.6 million for 2010-2011 and $0.3 million for 2012-
2013.
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Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of our financial statements requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and related disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities. Periodically, we evaluate our estimates, including those related to doubtful accounts, long-lived assets,
capitalized costs and accruals. We base our estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that
we believe are reasonable. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.
We believe that the application of the critical accounting policies discussed below requires significant judgments
and estimates on the part of management. For a summary of our accounting policies, see Note 3 of our consolidated
financial statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment

We capitalize the costs of new construction and replacement of our cable transmission and distribution facilities
and new service installation in accordance with SFAS No. 51, “Financial Reporting by Cable Television
Companies.” Costs associated with subsequent installations of additional services not previously installed at a
customer’s dwelling are capitalized to the extent such costs are incremental and directly attributable to the
installation of such additional services. Capitalized costs include all direct labor and materials as well as certain
indirect costs. Capitalized costs are recorded as additions to property, plant and equipment and depreciated over the
average life of the related assets. We use standard costing models, developed from actual historical costs and
relevant operational data, to determine our capitalized amounts. These models include labor rates, overhead rates
and standard time inputs to perform various installation and censtruction activities. The development of these
standards involves significant judgment by management, especially in the development of standards for our newer,
advanced products and services in which historical data is limited. Changes to the estimates or assumptions used in
establishing these standards could be material. We perform periodic evaluations of the estimates used to determine
the amount of costs that are capitalized. Any changes to these estimates, which may be significant, are applied in the
period in which the evaluations were completed.

Valuation and Impairment Testing of Indefinite-lived Intangibles

As of December 31, 2008, we had approximately $2.0 billion of unamortized intangible assets, including
goodwill of $220.7 million and franchise rights of $1.8 billion on our consolidated balance sheets. These intangible
assets represented approximately 54% of our total assets.

Our cable systems operate under non-exclusive cable franchises, or franchise rights, granted by state and local
governmental authorities for varying lengths of time. We acquired these franchise rights through acquisitions of
cable systems over the past several years. These acquisitions were accounted for using the purchase method of
accounting. The value of a franchise is derived from the economic benefits we receive from the right to solicit new
subscribers and to market new products and services, such as advanced digital television, HSD and phone, in a
specific market territory. We concluded that our franchise rights have an indefinite useful life since, among other
things, there are no legal, regulatory, contractual, competitive, economic or other factors limiting the period over
which these franchise rights contribute to our revenues and cash flows. Goodwill is the excess of the acquisition cost
of an acquired entity over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired. In accordance with SFAS No. 142,
“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” we do not amortize franchise rights and goodwill. Instead, such assets are
tested annually for impairment or more frequently if impairment indicators arise.

We follow the provisions of SFAS No. 142 to test our goodwill and franchise rights for impairment. We assess
the fair values of each cable system cluster using discounted cash flow methodology, under which the fair value of
cable franchise rights are determined in a direct manner. This assessment involves significant judgment, including
certain assumptions and estimates that determine future cash flow expectations and other future benefits, which are
consistent with the expectations of buyers and sellers of cable systems in determining fair value. These assumptions
and estimates include discount rates, revenues per customer, market penetration as a percentage of homes passed
and operating margin. We also consider market transactions, market valuations and other valuations using multiples
of operating income before depreciation and amortization to confirm the reasonableness of fair values determined by
the discounted cash flow methodology. Significant impairment in value resulting in impairment charges may result
if the estimates and assumpiions used in the fair value determination change in the future, and such impairments
_could potentially be material.
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Based on the guidance outlined in EITF No. 02-7, “Unit of Accounting for Testing Impairment of Indefinite-
Lived Intangible Assets,” we determined that the unit of accounting, or reporting unit, for testing goodwill and
franchise rights for impatrment resides at a cable system cluster level. Such level reflects the financial reporting
level managed and reviewed by the corporate office (i.e., chief operating decision maker) as well as how we
allocated capital resources and utilize the assets. Lastly, the reporting unit level reflects the level at which the
purchase method of accounting for our acquisitions was originally recorded. We have two reporting units for the
purpose of applying SFAS No. 142, Mediacom Broadband and Mediacom LLC.

In accordance with SFAS No. 142, we are required to determine goodwill impatmment using a two-step process.
The first step compares the fair value of a reporting unit with our carrying amount, including goodwill. If the fair
value of the reporting unit exceeds our carrying amount, goodwill of the reporting unit is considered not impaired
and the second step is unnecessary. If the carrying amount of a reporting unit exceeds our fair value, the second step
is performed to measure the amount of impairment loss, if any. The second step compares the implied fair value of
the reporting unit’s goodwill, calculated using the residual method, with the carrying amount of that goodwill. If the
carrying amount of the goodwill exceeds the implied fair value, the excess is recognized as an impairment loss.

The impairment test for our franchise rights and other intangible assets not subject to amortization consists of a
comparison of the fair value of the intangible asset with its carrying value. If the camying value of the intangible
asset exceeds its fair value, the excess is recognized as an impairment loss.

Since our adoption of SFAS No. 142 in 2002, we have not recorded any impairments as a result of our impairment
testing. We completed our most recent impairment test as of October 1, 2008, which reflected no impairment of our
franchise rights, goodwill or other intangible assets.

Our Class A common stock price has had significant volatility during the fourth quarter of 2008, along with a
precipitous drop in equity securities’ prices across all sectors of the United States. Because there has not been a
change in the fundamentals of our business, we do not believe that our stock price is the sole indicator of the
underlying value of the assets in our reporting units. We have therefore determined that this short-term volatility in
our stock price does not qualify as a triggering event under SFAS No. 142, and as such, no interim impairment test
is required as of December 31, 2008.

We could record impairments in the future if there are changes in the long-term fundamentals of our business,
in general market conditions or in the regulatory landscape that could prevent us from recovering the carrying value
of our long-lived intangible assets. In the near term, the economic conditions currently affecting the U.S. economy
and how that may impact the fundamentals of our business, together with the recent volatility in our stock price, may
have a negative impact on the fair values of the assets in our reporting units. For illustrative purposes, if there were a
hypothetical decline of 5%, 10% and 20% in the fair values determined for cable franchise rights at our Mediacom
Broadband reporting unit, an impairment loss of $0, $64.7 million and $196.1 million would result as of our
impairment testing date of October I, 2008, respectively. In addition, a hypothetical decline of 20% in the fair
values determined for goodwill and other finite-lived intangible assets at the same reporting unit, would not result in
any impairment loss as of October 1, 2008. A hypothetical decline of 20% in the fair values determined for
goodwill, cable franchise rights and other finite-lived intangible assets at our Mediacom LLC reporting unit, would
not result in any impairment loss as of October I, 2008.

Income Taxes

We account for income taxes using the liability method as stipulated by SFAS No. 109. This method generally
provides that deferred tax assets and liabilities be recognized for temporary differences between the financial
reporting basis and the tax basis of our assets and liabilities and anticipated benefit of utilizing net operating loss
carryforwards.

In evaluating our ability to recover our deferred tax assets and net operating loss carryforwards, we assess all
available positive and negative evidence including our most recent performance, the scheduled reversal of deferred
tax liabilities, our forecast of taxable income in future periods and available prudent tax planning strategies. In
forecasting future taxable income we use assumptions that require significant judgment and are consistent with the
estimates we use to manage our business. During 2008, we increased our valuation allowance against deferred tax
assets by $58.2 million and recognized a corresponding non-cash charge to the provision for income taxes. At
December 31, 2008, the valuation allowance had a balance of approximately $677.4 million. We will continue to
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monitor the need for the deferred tax asset valuation allowance in accordance with SFAS No. 109. We expect to add
to our valuation allowance any increase in deferred tax labilities relating to indefinite-lived intangible assets. We
will also adjust our valuation allowance if we assess that there is sufficient change in our ability to recover our
deferred tax assets. Our income tax expense in future periods will be reduced or increased to the extent of offsetting
decreases or increases, respectively, in our valuation allowance. These changes could have a significant impact on
our future earnings.

Share-based Compensation

We estimate the fair value of stock options granted using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. This fair
value is then amortized on a straight-line basis over the requisite service periods of the awards, which is generally
the vesting period. This option-pricing model requires the input of highly subjective assumptions, including the
option’s expected life and the price volatility of the underlying stock. The estimation of stock awards that will
ultimately vest requires judgment, and to the extent actual results or updated estimates differ from our current
estimates, such amounts will be recorded as a cumulative adjustment in the periods the estimates are revised. Actual
results, and future changes in estimates, may differ substantially from our current estimates,

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

in September 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value
Measurements. ” SFAS No. 157 establishes a single authoritative definition of fair value, sets out a framework for
measuring fair value and expands on required disclosures about fair value measurement. Effective January 1, 2008,
we adopted SFAS No. 157 for our financial assets and liabilities. In February 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff
Position (“FSP”) No. FAS 157-2, “Effective Date of FASB Statement No. 157,” which delays the effective date of
SFAS No. 157 for nonfinancial assets and liabilities, except for items that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in
the financial statements on a recurring basis (at least annually), to fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2008
and interim periods within those fiscal years. We are evaluating the impact of our nonfinancial assets and liabilities
which include goodwill and other intangible assets. SFAS No. 157 establishes a framework for measuring fair value
under generally accepted accounting principles and expands disclosures about fair value measurement. The adoption
of SFAS No. 157 on January 1, 2008 did not have a material effect on our consolidated financial statements.

The following sets forth our financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis at
December 31, 2008. These assets and liabilities have been categorized according to the three-level fair value
hierarchy established by SFAS No. 157, which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair value.

«  Level 1 — Quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets or labilities.

«  Level 2 — Observable market based inputs or unobservable inputs that are comroborated by market
data.

+  Level 3— Unobservable inputs that are not corroborated by market data.

As of December 31, 2008, our interest rate swap liabilities, net, were valued at $80.2 million using Level 2
inputs. '

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities — Including an amendment of FASB Statement No. 115.” SFAS No. 159 permits entities to choose to
measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value. This Statement is effective as of the
beginning of an entity’s first fiscal year that begins after November 15, 2007. We adopted SFAS No. 159 as of
January 1, 2008. We did not elect the fair value option of SFAS No. 159.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141 (R), “Business Combinations,” which continues to require
the treatment that all business combinations be accounted for by applying the acquisition method. Under the
acquisition method, the acquirer recognizes and measures the identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities assumed,
and any contingent consideration and contractual contingencies, as a whole, at their fair value as of the acquisition
date. Under SFAS No. 141 (R), all transaction costs are expensed as incurred. SFAS No. 141 (R) replaces
SFAS No. 141. The guidance in SFAS No. 141 (R) will be applied prospectively to business combinations for which
the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning after December 15,
2008.
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In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, “Nowncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial
Statements — an amendment of ARB No. 51.” SFAS No. 160 requires that a noncontrolling interest (previously
referred to as a minority interest) be separately reported in the equity section of the consolidated entity’s balance
sheet. SFAS No. 160 also established accounting and reporting standards for: (i) ownership interests in subsidiaries
held by parties other than the parent, (ii) the amount of consolidated net income attributable to the parent and to the
noncontrolling interest, (iii) changes in a parent’s ownership interest, (iv) the valvation of retained noncontrolling
equity investments when a subsidiary is deconsolidated and (v) sufficient disclosures to identify the interest of the
parent and the noncontrolling owners. SFAS No. 160 is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after December 15,
2008. We are currently assessing the potential impact that the adoption of SFAS No. 160 will have on our
consolidated financial statements.

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 161, “Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities — an amendment of FASB Statement No. 133.” SFAS No. 161 requires enhanced disclosures about an
entity’s derivative and hedging activities and thereby improves the transparency of financial reporting.
SFAS No. 161 is effective for financial statements issved for fiscal years and interim periods beginning afier
November 15, 2008, with early application encouraged. We have not completed our evaluation of SFAS No. 161 to
determine the impact that adoption will have on our consolidated financial condition or results of operations.

Inflation and Changing Prices

Our systems’ costs and expenses are subject to inflation and price fluctuations. Such changes in costs and
expenses can generally be passed through to subscribers. Programming costs have historically increased at rates in
excess of inflation and are expected to continue to do so. We believe that under the FCC’s existing cable rate
‘regulations we may increase rates for cable services to more than cover any increases in programming. However,
competitive conditions and other factors in the marketplace may limit our ability to increase our rates.
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

In the normal course of business, we use interest rate swaps with counterparties to fix the interest rate on a
portion of our variable interest rate debt. As of December 31, 2008, we had $1.2 billion of interest rate swaps with
various banks with a weighted average fixed rate of approximately 4.8%. We also had several forward starting
interest rate swaps with a fixed rate of approximately 3.2%, $1.0 billion and $0.1 billion of which commence during
the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2010, respectively. The fixed rates of the interest rate swaps are offset
against the appiicable Eurodollar rate to determine the related interest expense. Under the terms of the interest rate
swaps, we are exposed to credit risk in the event of nonperformance by the other parties; however, we do not
anticipate the nonperformance of any of our counterparties. At December 31, 2008, based on the mark-to-market
valuation, we would have paid approximately $80.2 million, including accrued interest, if we terminated these
interest rate swaps. Our current interest rate swaps are scheduled to expire in the amounts of $800.0 million,
$300.0 million and $100.0 million during the years ended December 31, 2009, 2010 and 2011 respectively. See
Notes 3 and 7 to our conselidated financial statements.

- Our interest rate swaps and financial contracts do not contain credit rating triggers that could affect our
liquidity.

The table below provides the expected maturity and estimated fair value of our debt as of December 31, 2008
{all dollars in thousands). '

Bank Credit
Senior Notes Facilities Total

Expected Maturity:

January 1, 2009 to December 31, 2009 ..................... $ — $ 124,500 $ 124,500
January 1, 2010 to December 31, 2010 ..........cc.ce..... — 92,000 92,000
January 1, 2011 to December 31, 2011 ..................... 125,000 148,000 273,000
January 1, 2012 to December 31, 2012 ..................... — 72,000 72,000
January 1, 2013 to December 31, 2013 ... 500,000 75,250 575,250
THETEATTET .veceeeeeeiveeeerie et ceves e e s sass e e ee e ssreeana 500,000 1,679,250 2,179,250
TOAL. ..ot s et eeaes e ereee e $ 1,125,000 $ 2,191,000 3,316,000
B VAIE oo eoesses e, $ 790,000  $_ 1420773 § 2,210,773
Weighted Average Interest Rate ...oooooreevrnercreecnnen, ' 8.9% 4.3% 5.8%
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
To the Sharcholders of Mediacom Communications Corporation:

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements listed in the accompanying index present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Mediacom Communications Corporation and its subsidiaries (the
“Company”} at December 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007, and the results of their operations and their cash flows
for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2008 in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. In addition, in our opinion, the financial statement schedule
listed in the accompanying index presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein when read
in conjunction with the related consolidated financial statements. Also in our opinion, the Company maintained, in
all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2008, based on criteria
established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission (COSQ). The Company’s management is responsible for these financial statements and
financial statement schedule, for maintaining effective intemmal control over financial reporting and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of intermal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying
Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting, appearing under Item 9A. Our responsibility is
to express opinions on these financial statements, on the financial statement schedule, and on the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting based on our integrated audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with
the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board {United States). Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
naterial misstatement and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material
respects. Our audits of the financial statements included examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principies used and significant estimates made
by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. Qur audit of internal control over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed nisk. Our audits also included performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s intemnal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstafements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degrec of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate,

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

New York, New York
March 13, 2009
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MEDIACOM COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS

Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $2,774
and $2,107 respectively et
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
DEferred TAX ASSBLS . eeneeeieeeeeeer et e ene e e e e res e e e rtesas e b et e re s nassrne i eranssrn s
ASSEs NEld 0T SAlE ..ovviiieie e ettt ettt e e s e
Total CUITENE ASSEES ..ot ie e ae s eesen e sna s e sms e rn e s reons
Investment in cable television systems:
Property, plant and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of
$1,765,319 and 31,564,583, reSpectiVely uvvvrieeerierceceniececin e e e e
Franchise Tighs. .. oo veee et n e e
GOOAWIIL ...t r e ne s e e s e s mn e et n s
Subscriber lists and other intangible assets, net of accumulated
amortization of $155,721 and $153,184 respectively .....ccccovvicmrcennnciennee.
Assets held for 8ale ...
Total investment in cable television SyStems ..o,
Other assets, net of accumulated amortization of $21,922 and $27,172,
TESPECLIVELY c..eeicrrtrcr e srermc s snss s s e s e eme e s e e ba b bt

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIT
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses and other current liabilities .............
Deferred FEVEIIUS ..oiviiieiieesrieeereeeeeiae e et e e ae e ee e e s e eeeseee e e e s onesmeeenesmneen
Current portion of long-term debl ...t srresneesas
Liabilities Deld fOr SALE ..o et e bt easaesra s s srasesnsaransens
Total current HabilEs ...oocoeiverreee e et e e e e ee e e
Long-term debt, less Current Portion ... e,
Deferred tax HabIIES ..ceerceeererrceiserssrnseseeseeesereacsmsesaesesmasessmasareeesassseaneesraens
Other non-current HabilItEs.........ocoviocecrterteein s ee s rncesres s s ess e rasssenanesrrenessense
TOTA] LHABILIEIES vvieeeieeieiere e eeeeeree e e e e e e e e e e b setee st sarea s e s abaaane
Commitments and contingencies (Note 8)
STOCKHOLDERS® DEFICIT
Class A common stock, $.01 par value; 300,000,000 shares authorized;
94,984 989 shares issued and 67,784,366 shares outstanding as of
December 31, 2008 and 93,825,218 shares issued and
82,761,606 shares outstanding as of December 31, 2007 ........cocovvvecnn.
Class B common stock, $.01 par value; 100,000,000 shares authorized;
27,001,944 shares issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2008 and
December 31, 2007, reSPectiVely ... oo iceie e ceeeemtcee st creneeneseeeenens
Additional paid-in capital ..ot e
AccUMUIATEd AEIICIL. ..o ivviiiiereieireissesrsirerressnrsrrssmseesseensseensanseeeasasaeseasmtant seon
Treasury stock, at cost, 27,200,623 and 22,281,222 shares of Class A
common stock, as of December 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007,
TESPECTIVERY -—..vecveevusarmaereesmsrnsee s smsamaesas e sess et e secssntenssesesessseasaetaeeseemaerss
Total stockholders” defiCi .......ooover ettt s s

Total Habilities and stockholders’ deflCit. ... csee s e

December 31,
2008

December 31,
2007

{Amounts in thousands)

$ 67,111 $ 19,388
81,086 81,509
17,615 20,630

8,260 2424
1,693 649
175,765 124,600
1,476,287 1,412,139
1,793,579 1,793,549
220,646 220,646
7,994 10,532
10,933 28,927
3,500,439 3,465,793
33,785 24,817

$ 3,718,989

$ 3,615,210

$ 268574 $ 246915
54316 51,015
124,500 94,533
2,020 570
449,410 393,033
3,191,500 3,120,500
380,650 316,602
44,073 38,164
4,065,633 3,868,299
950 943

270 270
1,004,334 997,404
(1,198,734) (1,121,242)
(153,464) (130,464)
(346,644) (253,089)

$ 3,718,989

¥ 3,615,210

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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MEBIACOM COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended
December 31,
2008 2007 2006
{Amounts in thousands)
© REVEIIUES. ...t eeete v e s eesve e ss s res s rressnesee s svasesrnersrasesneenes $1,401,894 $1,293,375 $1,210,400
Costs and expenses: )
Service costs (exclusive of depreciation and amortization)........ 585,362 544 072 492,729
Selling, general and adminisirative eXpenses -.....ocoovececrcerecan 278,942 264,006 252,688
COTPOTALE EXPEDSES . .cccveerrccnrresreerrrinrereererrssesssnssersassasernersneresseens 30,824 27,637 25,445
Depreciation and amOrHZation............weeeveeeeerinereesrscssrerssesseseen. 227910 235,331 215,918
Operating INCOMIE ..c.o.ceremiereieeainerne e sersesesnesenesseaseessassesssnsssenen. 278,856 222329 223,620
Interest expense, net .......... ettt r e et eeb it e et (213,333) (239,015) (227,206)
Loss on early extinguishment of debt.........cccooorierivierciinrecn — — (35,831)
L05S 01 deriVatiVES, TIET ...oviiiriiecie i eeest e et e s s st eseevesneeeas (54,363) (22,902) (15,798)
(Loss) gain on sale of cable systems, net (21,308) 11,079 —
OHhEr EXPENSE, NEL c.eveoereeeeeeeceeese s arsresenssesseessserssearseessrasensasons (8,133) (9,054) (9,973)
Loss before INCOME tAXES....cvvrrvvirrervrvmarserrersearersasessrrnsrassrassssens {19,281) (37,563) (65,188)
Provision fOr INCOMNE LAXES ......cecvvveveeveevesneressersessenssrssarsssssessssnsees (58,213) (57,566) (59,734)
INEELOSS 1uvvvrveeeaesseseess e ettt ses s ems bt eeeee s ee bt et ses s § (77,494) $ (95,129) $ (124,922)
Basic — weighted average shares outstanding.........c.occoeoinnee. 95,548 107,828 110,971
Basic — 10ss per share...........covoveveceieeceeeeeeeeee $  (0.81) $ (088 5 (1.13)
Diluted — weighted average shares outstanding..........co.ccoevvenneenn. 95,548 107,828 110,971
Diluted — 1088 PEr SHATE ...cveeeeieeeeeeeec et cen e $ (0.81) $ (0.88) $ (1.13)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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MEDIACOM COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

- CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’® (DEFICIT) EQUITY

Class A Class B Additional
Common  Common Paid-In Accumulated Treasary Deferred
Stock Stock Capital Deficit Stock Compensation Teotal
) (All dollar amounts in thousands}

Balance, December 31, 2005........ $ 933 3% 274 $ 990,584 § (901,191 § (26,636) 3% (4,857 % 59,107
Net loss — — —_ (124,922) —_ —_ (124,922)
Share-based compensation............ — —_ 4478 — — —_ 4478
Issuance of common stock in

employee stock purchase plan.... 2 — 908 — — — L0
Issuance of restricted stock

units, net of forfeitures................ — —_ — — (60} — (60}
Deferred compensation ... 3 — {4,860) —_— —_ 4,857 —
Treasury stock, at cost. — — — — (34,327) — (34,327
Transfer of Stock....oeeeevceccvevarinens — 3 3 — — - -
Balance, December 31, 2006....... 3 938 $ 271 8 991,113 § (1,026,113) § {61,023) $ — $ (94,814)
Net 1088 ceoeceeecrnecrnieniinees — — — (95,129) — — (95,129)
Share-based compensation............. — — 5,299 — — — 5,299
Issuance of common stock in

employee stock purchase plan.... 2 — 962 — (3) — 961
Issuance of restricted stock _

units, net of forfeitures...... 2 — @) — (402) — (402)
Exercise of stock options, net ....... — —_ 32 —_ - — 32
Treasury stock, at cost. — —_— — — {69,036) — (69,036)
Transfer of StocK v ereereeeerenens 1 ) — — — - —
Balance, December 31, 2007...... 3 943 § 270§ 997404 S (1,121,242) $ (130,464) § — § (253,089)
Net 1085 . vvvuueecenenceeorenn — — — (77.,494) — — (77,494)
Share-based compensation............ — —_ 5,168 — — - 5,168
Issuance of common stock in

employee stock purchase plan ... 2 — 1,012 — — — 1,014
Issuance of restricted stock

units, net of forfeitures...... . — — — — (609) — (609)
Exercise of stock options, net ....... — — 755 — — — 755
Treasury stock, at cost.. - — — — — (22,389) — (22,389)
Transfer of S0cK.omreeeeeeervirnsans 5 — (5) 2 2 — —
Balance, December 31, 2008....... 3 950 § 270 $ 1004334 8§ (1,198,734) § (153464) § — $ (346,644)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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Year Ended
December 31,
2008 2007 2006
(Amounts in thousands)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
INEE 0SS 1ottt ns st s s s e et et n e $ (77,494) § (95,129) $(124,922)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by operating
activities:
Depreciation and amMOTtIZAION ......cvcvvvevevrrcerreesinereesnessnsesessersssssssarensens 227910 235,331 215,918
Loss on derivatives, net __........ccocooiivvcrnireenene. 54,363 22,902 15,798
Write-down — assets held for sale.................... 17,680 — —
Loss {gain) on sale of cable systems, net 170 (11,079 —
Loss on early extinguishment of debt....eiveeeiiciee i, — — 11,206
Amortization of deferred financing costs ......ccoveervvreerencrvncnnrrserecreens 5,070 4,384 5,998
Share-based compensation.........cceceveeeereveeesrenss 5,168 5,299 4,478
Deferred INCOME taXES ...oceeeeeeeeee e ceeeeereer e vese e s rne s v e ressaen s e 58,213 57,345 59,527
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effects from acquisitions:
Accounts receivable, et ... (78) (6,342) (11,877)
Prepaid expenses and other assets.........cc.c.... 338 (5,360) 118
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (21,983) {21,767) - 400
DeferTed TEVEIUE. ... it vvrrer v ees e s s aresenssesesabessssasesssasss caraseonmtossae 3,301 4,722 5,220
Other non-current Habiliies .........oerrerreureesineemeeeecoeeeesee oo (3,243) (2,014) (4,959}
Net cash flows provided by operating activities ............cocooceuenc... $ 268,715 % 188,792 § 176,905
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Capital eXPERdIUIES ..eeeoeeceee e st cen st e e cen e e s csem e ene e $(289,825) $(227409) §(210,235)
Acquisition of cable SYStem.......occo e e — (7,274) _—
Proceeds from sales of cable SYSIEMS .........cveeucreererieseieeecen i seesieeea — 32,348 —

Net cash flows used in investing activities .......ccecoveeecvevvecenene... 3 (289,825)

$ (202,335)

$ (210,235)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

NEW DOITOWINZS c-evvreeerrreerenrernsrerserersresssrnsssassssrssnsesasisassesssssesenssrassseoesssn $1,035,000 % 412,525  $2,181,000
Repayment of debt (934,033) (342,091) (1,823,552)
Redemption/repayment of SENIOT NOTES vueeurveercersee e — — (572,500)
Issuance Of SEIOT MOTES .....ccveeeieeecee et eneee e e sn s — — 300,000
Repurchases of Class A common StOCK. ..o vevieiccicecceee e (22,389) (69,036} (34,386)
Proceeds from issuance of common stock in employee stock
PUIChASE PlAN ..ottt e 1,012 962 909
Other financing activities — book overdrafts.........ccovevveereeceirvisncnninen, 130 (5,814) 3,916
FiDANCINE COLS .ovvvveer v ecrerecrevcrerevsetsnsenseeserersnans et et (10,887) — (2,953)
Net cash flows provided by (used in) financing activities ........... $ 68833 3 (3454 § 52434
Net increase (decrease) in €ash......c..oveveirseniennrseseesessesesesseneens 47,723 (16,997) 19,104
CASH, beginning of PEriod ... eueereereerseneessessesssssssessemsessereeeceseeeme oo 19,388 36,385 17,281
CASH, €18 OF PEIIOM 1.vvvreevereeereereeeceos s ssee o sseesesesssesas s sssstsssemseneseeeseenen $ 67,111 § 19388 § 36,385
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW
INFORMATION:
Cash paid during the period for interest, net of amounts capitalized........ $ 209,164 § 245,143 § 247,507

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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(1) ORGANIZATION

Mediacom Communications Corporation (“MCC,” and collectively with our direct and indirect subsidiaries,
the “Company”) was organized in November 1999, and is involved in the development of cable systems serving
smaller cities and towns in the United States. Through these cable systems, we provide entertainment, information
and telecommunications services to our subscribers and customers. As of December 31, 2008, we were operating
cable systems in 22 states, principally Alabama, California, Delaware, Florida, Georgia, Iliinois, Indiana, lowa,
Kentucky, Minnesota, Missouri, North Carolina and South Dakota. '

(2) LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

As of December 31, 2008, we had unused revolving credit commitments of $762.2 million, all of which could
be borrowed and used for general corporate purposes based on the terms and conditions of our debt arrangements.

(3) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of MCC and our subsidiaries. All significant
intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated. The preparation of the consolidated financial
statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
" disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. The accounting estimates that require management’s most
difficult and subjective judgments include: assessment and valuation of intangibles, accounts receivable allowance,
useful lives of property, plant and equipment, share-based compensation, and the recognition and measurement of
income tax assets and liabilities. Actual results could differ from those and other estimates. Effective January 1,
2006, we adopted SFAS No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment.” See Note 8.

Revenue Recognition

Revenues from video, HSD and phone services are recognized when the services are provided to our
customers, Credit risk is managed by disconnecting services to customers who are deemed to be delinquent.
Installation revenues are recognized as customer connections are completed because installation revenues are less
than direct installation costs. Advertising sales are recognized in the period that the advertisements are exhibited.
Under the terms of our franchise agreements, we are required to pay local franchising authorities up to 5% of our
gross revenues derived from providing cable services. We normally pass these fees through to our customers.
Franchise fees are reported in their respective revenue categories and included in selling, general and administrative
expenses.

Franchise fees imposed by local governmental authorities are collected on a monthly basis from our customers
and are periodically remitted to the local governmental authorities. Because franchise fees are our obligation, we
present them on a gross basis with a corresponding operating expense. Franchise fees reported on a gross basis
amounted to approximately $36.8 million, $36.6 million and $36.7 million for the years ended December 31, 2008,
2007 and 2006, respectively.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The allowance for doubtful accounts represents our best estimate of probable losses in the accounts receivable
balance. The allowance is based on the number of days outstanding, customer balances, historical experience and
other currently available information. During the year ended December 31, 2006, we revised our estimate of
probable losses in the accounts receivable of our advertising business to better reflect historical collection
experience. The change in estimate resulted in a benefit to the consolidated statement of operations of $0.4 million
for the year ended December 31, 2006.
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During the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2006, we revised our estimate of probable losses in the
accounts receivable of our video, HSD and phone business to better reflect historical collection experience. The
change in estimate resulted in a loss of $0.6 million and income of $1.0 million in our consolidated statement of
operations for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2006, respectively.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Our accounts receivable are comprised of amounts due from subscribers in varying regions throughout the
United States. Concentration of credit risk with respect to these receivables is limited due to the large number of
customers comprising our customer base and their geographic dispersion. We invest our cash with high quality
financial institutions. :

Praperty, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost. Additions to property, plant and equipment generally

include material, labor and indirect costs. Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the following useful
lives:

BUIIAINZS. e et ettt e s s v s rassmerers resns e reseesr e sa s e e s et e as b e e sas e e e st e sben s 40 Years

Leasehold IMPIOVEIMETIES «.....ccoee et cee e cecen e cmee e e eae e emt et emnotes e s sr e sresas s ens Life of respective lease
Cable systems and equipment and subscriber devices.....o.ocvvreevnniiinnieciiiicieenn, 5 to 20 years

VBNICLES .. e e em e sttt st ee st e e s e ea e e et e s s e eaeenaanrensernrsneeetestens 3 to 5 years

Furniture, fixtures and office €qUIPMENL .........vcccveeeeeiirecerie et 5 years

We capitalize improvements that extend asset lives and expense repairs and maintenance as incurred. At the
time' of retirements, write-offs, sales or other dispositions of property, the original cost and related accumulated
depreciation are removed from the respective accounts and the gains or losses are included in depreciation and
amortization expense in the consolidated statement of operations.

We capitalize the costs associated with the construction of cable transmission and distribution facilities, new
customer installations and indirect costs associated with our telephony product. Costs include direct labor and
material, as well as certain indirect costs including interest. We perform periodic evaluations of certain estimates
used to determine the amount and extent that such costs that are capitalized. Any changes to these estimates, which
may be significant, are applied in the period in which the evaluations were completed. The costs of disconnecting
service at a customer’s dwelling or reconnecting to a previously installed dwelling are charged as expense in the
period incurred. Costs associated with subsequent installations of addifional services not previously installed at a
customer’s dwelling are capitalized to the extent such costs are incremental and directly attributable to the
* installation of such additional services. See also Note 5.

Capitalized Software Casts

We account for internal-use software development and related costs in accordance with AICPA Statement of
Position No. 98-1, “Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Use.”
Software development and other related costs consist of external and internal costs incurred in the application
development stage to purchase and implement the software that will be used in our telephony business. Costs
incurred in the development of application and- infrastructure of the software is capitalized and will be amortized
over our respective estimated useful life of 5 years. During the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, we
capitalized approximately $2.5 million and $1.2 million, respectively of software development costs. Capitalized
software had a net book value of $18.7 million and $16.5 million as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Marketing and Promotional Costs

Marketing and promotional costs are expensed as incurred and were $29.3 million, $30.1 million and
" $28.9 million for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.
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Intangible Assets

Our cable systems operate under non-exclusive cable franchises, or franchise rights, granted by state and local
governmental authorities for varying lengths of time. We acquired these cable franchises through acquisitions of
cable systems and were accounted for using the purchase method of accounting. As of December 31, 2008, we held
1,368 franchises in areas located throughout the United States. The value of a franchise is derived from the
economic benefits we receive from the right to solicit new subscribers and to market new products and services,
such as advanced digital television, HSD and phone, in a specific market territory. We concluded that our franchise
rights have an indefinite useful life since, among other things, there are no legal, regulatory, contractual,
competitive, economic or other factors limiting the period over which these franchise rights contribute to our
revenues and cash flows. Goodwill is the excess of the acquisition cost of an acquired entity over the fair value of
the identifiable net assets acquired. In accordance with SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” we
do not amortize franchise rights and goodwill. Instead, such assets are tested annually for impairment or more
frequently if impairment indicators arise.

We follow the provisions of SFAS No. 142 to test our goodwill and franchise rights for impairment. We assess
the fair values of each cable system cluster using discounted cash flow methodology, under which the fair value of
cable franchise rights are determined in a direct manner. This assessment involves significant Jjudgment, including
certain assumptions and estimates that determine future cash flow expectations and other future benefits, which are
consistent with the expectations of buyers and sellers of cable systems in determining fair value. These assumptions
and estimates include discount rates, revenues per customer, market penetration as a percentage of homes passed
and operating margin. We also consider market transactions, market valuations and other valuations using multiples
of operating income before depreciation and amortization to confirm the reasonableness of fair values determined by
the discounted cash flow methodology. Significant impairment in value resulting in impairment charges may result
if the estimates and assumptions used in the fair value determination change in the future, and such impairments
could potentially be material.

Based on the guidance outlined in EITF No. 02-7, “Unit of Accounting for Testing Impairment of Indefinite-
Lived Intangible Assets,” we determined that the unit of accounting, or reporting unit, for testing goodwill and
franchise rights for impairment resides at a cable system cluster level. Such level reflects the financial reporting
level managed and reviewed by the corporate office (i.c., chief operating decision maker) as well as how we
allocated capital resources and utilize the assets. Lastly, the reporting unit level reflects the level at which the
purchase method of accounting for our acquisitions was originally recorded. We have two reporting units for the
purpose of applying SFAS No. 142, Mediacom Broadband and Mediacom LLC.

In accordance with SFAS No. 142, we are required to determine goodwill impairment using a two-step process.
The first step compares the fair value of a reporting unit with our carrying amount, including goodwill. If the fair
value of the reporting unit exceeds our carrying amount, goodwill of the reporting unit is considered not impaired
and the second step is unnecessary. If the carrying amount of a reporting unit exceeds our fair value, the second step
is performed to measure the amount of impairment loss, if any. The second step compares the implied fair value of
the reporting unit’s goodwill, calculated using the residual method, with the carrying amount of that goodwill. If the
carrying amount of the goodwill exceeds the implied fair value, the excess is recognized as an impairment loss.

The impairment test for our franchise rights and other intangible assets not subject to amortization consists of a
comparison of the fair value of the intangible asset with its carrying value. If the carrying value of the intangible
asset exceeds its fair value, the excess is recognized as an impairment loss.

Since our adoption of SFAS No. 142 in 2002, we have not recorded any impairments as a result of our
impairment testing. We completed our most recent impairment test as of October 1, 2008, which reflected no
impairment of our franchise rights, goodwill or other intangible assets.

Our Class A common stock price has had significant volatility during the fourth quarter of 2008, along with a

precipitous drop in equity securities’ prices across all sectors of the United States. Because there has not been a
change in the fundamentals of our business, we do not believe that our stock price is the sole indicator of the
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underlying value of the assets in our reporting units. We have therefore determined that this short-term volatility in
our stock price does not qualify as a triggering event under SFAS No. 142, and as such, no interim impairment test
is required as of December 31, 2008.

Other finite-lived intangible assets, which consist primarily of subscriber lists and covenants not to compete,
continue to be amortized over their useful lives of 5 to 10 years and 5 years, respectively. Amortization expense for
the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 was approximately $2.6 million, $2.5 million and $2.1 million,
respectively. Our estimated aggregate amortization expense for 2009 through 2011 and beyond are $2.6 million,
$2.6 million, $2.6 million and $0.2 million, respectively.

Other Assets

Other asscts, net, primarily include financing costs and original issue discount incurred to raise debt. Financing
costs are deferred and amortized as other expense and original issue discounts are deferred and amertized as interest
expense over the expected term of such financings.

Segment Reporting

SFAS No. 131, “Disclosure about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information,” requires the disclosure
of factors used to identify an enterprise’s reportable segments. Qur operations are organized and managed on the
basis of cable system clusters that represent operating segments within our service area. Each operating segment
derives our revenues from the delivery of similar products and services to a customer base that is also similar. Each
operating segment deploys similar technology to deliver our products and services and operates within a similar
regulatory environment. In addition, each operating segment has similar economic characteristics. Management
evaluated the criteria for aggregation of the operating segments under SFAS No. 131 and believes that we meet each
of the respective criteria set forth. Accordingly, management has identified broadband services as our one reportable
segment.

Accounting for Derivative Instruments

We account for derivative instruments in accordance with SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities,” SFAS No. 138, “Accounting for Certain Derivative Instruments and Certain
Hedging Activities-an amendment of FASB Statement No. 133,” and SFAS No. 149 “Amendment of Statement 133
on Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities. " These pronouncements require that all derivative instrurnents be
recognized on the balance sheet at fair value. We enter into interest rate swaps to fix the interest rate on a portion of
our variable interest rate debt to reduce the potential volatility in our interest expense that would otherwise result
from changes in market inferest rates. Our derivative instruments are recorded at fair value and are included in other
current assets, other assets and other liabilities of our consolidated balance sheet. Qur accounting policies for these
instruments are based on whether they meet our criteria for designation as hedging transactions, which include the
instrument’s effectiveness, risk reduction and, in most cases, a one-to-one matching of the derivative instrument to
our underlying transaction. Gains and losses from changes in fair values of derivatives that are not designated as
hedges for accounting purposes are recognized in the consolidated statement of operations. We have no derivative
financial instruments designated as hedges. Therefore, changes in fair value for the respective periods were
recognized in the consolidated statement of operations.

Accounting for Asset Retirement

We adopted SFAS No, 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations,” on January 1, 2003.
SFAS No. 143 addresses financial accounting and reporting for obligations associated with the retirement of
tangible long-lived assets and the associated asset retirement costs. We reviewed our asset retirement obligations to
determine the fair value of such liabilities and if a reasonable estimate of fair value could be made. This entailed the
review of leases covering tangible long-lived assets as well as our rights-of-way under franchise agreements, Certain
of our franchise agreements and leases contain provisions that require restoration or removal of equipment if the
franchises or leases are not renewed. Based on historical experience, we expect to renew our franchise or lease
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agreements. In the unlikely event that any franchise or lease agreement is not expected to be renewed, we would
record an estimated liability. However, in determining the fair -value of our asset retirement obligation under our
franchise agreements, consideration will be given to the Cable Communications Policy Act of 1984, which generally
entitles the cable operator to the “fair market value™ for the cable system covered by a franchise, if renewal is denied
and the franchising authority acquires ownership of the cable system or effects a transfer of the cable system to
another person. Changes in these assumptions based on future information could result in adjustments to estimated
liabilities. '

Upon adoption of SFAS No. 143, we determined that in certain instances, it is obligated by contractual terms or
regulatory requirements to remove facilities or perform other remediation activities upon the retirement of our
assets. We initially recorded a $7.8 million asset in property, plant and equipment and a corresponding Hability of
$7.8 million. As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, the comresponding asset, net of accumulated amortization, was
$2.1 million and $2.9 million, respectively.

Accounting for Long-Lived Assets

In accordance with SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” we
periodically evaluate the recoverability and estimated lives of our long-lived assets, including property and
equipment and intangible assets subject to amortization, whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable or the useful life has changed. The measurement for such impairment
loss 1s based on the fair value of the asset, typically based upon the future cash flows discounted at a rate
commensurate with the risk involved. Unless presented separately, the loss is included as a component of either
depreciation expense or amortization expense, as appropriate.

Programming Costs

We have various fixed-term carriage contracts to obtain programming for our cable systems from content
suppliers whose compensation is generally based on a fixed monthly fee per customer. These programming
contracts are subject to negotiated renewal. Programming costs are recognized when we distribute the related
programmiing. These programming costs are usually payable each month based on calculations performed by us and
are subject to adjustments based on the resuits of pertodic audits by the content supphiers. Historically, such audit
adjustments have been immaterial to our total programming costs. Some content suppliers offer financial incentives
to support the launch of a channel and ongoing marketing support. When such financial incentives are received, we
defer them within non-current liabilities m our consolidated balance sheets and recognizes such amounts as a
reduction of programming costs (which are a component of service costs in the consolidated statement of
operations} over the carriage term of the programming contract.

Share-based Compensation

We adopted SFAS No. 123(R) on January 1, 2006 (see Note 8). We estimate the fair value of stock options
granted using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. This fair value is then amortized on a straight-line basis over
the requisite service periods of the awards, which is generally the vesting period. This option-pricing model requires
the -input of highly subjective assumptions, including the option’s expected life and the price volatility of the
underlying stock. The estimation of stock awards that will ultimately vest requires judgment, and to the extent actual
results or updated estimates differ from our current estimates, such amounts will be recorded as a cumulative
adjustment in the periods the estimates are revised. Actual results, and future changes in estimates, may differ
substantially from our current estimates.

Income Taxes
We account for income taxes using the liability method as stipulated by SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for
Income Taxes.” This method generally provides that deferred tax assets and liabilities be recognized for temporary

differences between the financial reporting basis and the tax basis of our assets and liabilities and anticipated benefit
of utilizing net operating loss carryforwards,
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In evaluating our ability to recover our deferred tax assets and net operating loss carryforwards, we assess all
available positive and negative evidence including recent performance, the scheduled reversal of deferred tax
liabilities, forecasts of taxable income in future periods and available prudent tax planning strategies. In forecasting
future taxable income, we use assumptions that require significant judgment and are consistent with the estimates
used to manage the business. At December 31, 2008, we recorded a net deferred tax asset valuation allowance of
approximately $677.4 million. We will continue to monitor the need for the deferred tax asset valuation allowance in
accordance with SFAS No. 109. Should there be a sufficient change in our assessment of our ability to recover our
deferred tax assets, we will adjust our valuation allowance accordingly.

Comprehensive Income

SFAS No. 130, “Reporting Comprehensive Income,” requires companies to classify items of other
comprehensive income by their nature in the financial statements and display the accumulated balance of other
comprehensive income separately from retained earnings and additional paid-in capital in the equity section of a
statemnent of financial position. We have had no other comprehensive income items to report.

Reclassifications
Certain reclassifications have been made to prior year amounts to conform to the current year presentation.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™) issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value
Measurements.” SFAS No. 157 establishes a single authoritative definition of fair value, sets out a framework for
measuring fair value and expands on required disclosures about fair value measurement. Effective January 1, 2008,
we adopted SFAS No. 157 for our financial assets and liabilities. In February 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff
Position (“FSP™)} No. FAS 157-2, “Effective Date of FASB Statement No. 157, which delays the effective date of
SFAS No. 157 for nonfinancial assets and liabilities, except for items that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in
the financial statements on a recurring basis (at least annually), to fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2008
and interim periods within those fiscal years. We are evaluating the impact of our nonfinancial assets and liabilities
which include goodwill and other intangible assets. SFAS No. 157 establishes a framework for measuring fair value
under generally accepted accounting principles and expands disclosures about fair value measurement. The adoption
of SFAS No. 157 on January 1, 2008 did not have a material effect on our consolidated financial statements.

The following sets forth our financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis at
December 31, 2008. These assets and liabilities have been categorized according to the three-level fair value
hierarchy established by SFAS No. 157, which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair value.

* Level 1 — Quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

* Level 2-— Observable market based inputs or unobservable inputs that are corroborated by market
data.

e Level 3 — Unobservabie inputs that are not costoborated by market data.

As of December 31, 2008, our interest rate swap liabilities, net, were valued at $80.2 million using Level 2
inputs.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities — Including an amendment of FASB Statement No. 115.” SFAS No. 159 permits entities to choose to
measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value. This Statement is effective as of the
beginning of an entity’s first fiscal year that begins after November 15, 2007. We adopted SFAS No. 159 as of
January 1, 2008. We did not elect the fair value option of SFAS No. 159.
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In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141(R), “Business Combinations,” which continues to require
the treatment that all business combinations be accounted for by applying the acquisition method. Under the
acquisition method, the acquirer recognizes and measures the identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities assumed,
and any contingent consideration and contractual contingencies, as a whole, at their fair value as of the acquisition
date. Under SFAS No. 141(R), all transaction costs are expensed as incurred. SFAS No. 141 (R) replaces
SFAS No. 141. The guidance in SFAS No. 141 (R) will be applied prospectively to business combinations for which
the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning after December 15,
2008. Any impact will be dependent on the terms of future business combinations.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, “Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial
Statements — an amendment of ARB No. 51.” SFAS No. 160 requires that a noncontrolling interest (previously
referred to as a minority interest) be separately reported in the equity section of the consolidated entity’s balance
sheet. SFAS No. 160 also established accounting and reporting standards for: (i) ownership interests in subsidiaries
held by parties other than the parent; (ii) the amount of consolidated net income attributable to the parent and to the
noncontrolling interest; (iil) changes in a parent’s ownership interest; (iv) the valuation of retained nonconirolling
equity investments when a subsidiary is deconsolidated; and (v) sufficient disclosures to identify the interest of the
parent and the noncontrolling owners. SFAS No. 160 is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after December 15,
2008. We are cumrently assessing the potential impact that the adoption of SFAS No. 160 will have on our
consolidated financial statements. "

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 161, “Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities — an amendment of FASB Statement No. 133.” SFAS No. 161 requires enhanced disclosures about an
entity’s derivative - and hedging activities and thereby improves the transparency of financial reporting.
SFAS No. 161 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years and interim periods beginning after
November 15, 2008, with early application encouraged. We have not completed our evaluation of SFAS No. 161 to
determine the impact that adoption will have on our consolidated financial condition or results of operations.

(4) EARNINGS PER SHARE

We calculate earnings per share in accordance with SFAS No. 128, “Earnings per Share.” SFAS No. 128
computes basic earnings (loss) per share by dividing the net income (loss) by the weighted average number of shares
of commeon stock outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net income
(loss) by the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the period plus the effects of
any dilutive securities. Diluted earnings per share considers the impact of potentially dilutive securities except in
periods in which there is a loss because the inclusion of the potential common shares would have an anti-dilutive
effect. Our potentially dilutive securitics include common shares which may be issued upon exercise of our stack
options, conversion of convertible senior notes or vesting of restricted stock units. Diluted earnings per share
excludes the impact of potential common shares related to our stock options in periods in which the option exercise
price is greater than the average market price of our Class A common stock during the period.

For the year ended December 31, 2008, we generated net losses, and so the inclusion of the potential common
shares would have been anti-dilutive. Accordingly, diluted loss per share equaled basic Joss per share. For the year
ended December 31, 2008, the calculation of diluted loss per share excludes 3.3 million potential common shares
related to our stock options and restricted stock units.

For the year ended December 31, 2007, we generated net losses, and so the inclusion of the potential common
shares would have been anti-dilutive. Accordingly, diluted loss per share equaled basic loss per share. For the year
ended December 31, 2007, the calculation of diluted loss per share excludes 2.1 million potential common shares
related to our stock options and restricted stock units.

For the year ended December 31, 2006, we generated net losses, and so the inclusion of the potential cormmon
shares would have been anti-dilutive. Accordingly, diluted loss per share equaled basic loss per share. For the year
ended December 31, 2006, the calculation of diluted loss per share excludes 1.5 million potential common shares
related to our stock options and restricted stock units, and 9.2 million potential common shares related .to our
convertible senior notes.
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The following table reconciles the numerator and denominator of the computations of diluted loss per share for
the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 (amounts in thousands, except per share amounts):

For the Year Ended December 31,

2008 2007 2006
Amount - Amount . Amount
Net per Net per Net per
Loss Shares Share Loss Shares Share Loss Shares Share
Basic loss per share......oocoeiieceee. $(77,494) 95,548 § (0.81) $(95,129) 107,828 $ (0.88) $(124,922 110,971 $§ (1.13)
Effect of dilutive securities:
Conversion of convertible senior
4] £ O — — — — — — e — —
Assumed exercise of stock
OPLIONS e eemremreecemeenecr e — — — — - — — — —
Diluted loss per Share....coomernerrene, $(77,494) 95,548 § (0.81) $(95,129) 107,828 § (0.88) $(124,922 110,971 § (1.13)

(5) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, praoperty, plant and equipment consisted of (dollars in thousands):

December 31, December 31,
2008 2007
Cable systems, equipment and subscriber devices ........ccoeoniecinincnnnnen. $ 3,059,325 $ 2,808,187
VBHICIES ..o vviieeeeeraererrrrssissise st et sesnssersererassresmrsesnssssoesesnsssanesessanessenesnsesnans 72,759 67,468
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment .........ooveeemeeeeeeecereeeceeee e 60,028 53,005
Buildings and leasehold improvements ...........cc.covvveveerervrevvrerressssseeeesnsans 41,941 40,880
Land and 1and improVementS.........uurserrerererrresenesssesesssessinsesassssssesesesssnns 7,553 7,182
. $ 3,241,606 $ 2,976,722
Accumulated dePreciation ...........ooceweeeerereeeeeceeeeeeeececeeseeeeeeeeeesee s s seneerens (1,765,319) (1,564,583)
Property, plant and eqUIPIMEnt, TET ... . ..ervvveememeee oo oo e eeeeeseeeeeens $ 1,476,287 $ 1412139

Change in Estimate — Useful lives

Effective July 1, 2008, we changed the estimated useful lives of certain plant and equipment within our cable
systems due to the initial deployment of all digital video technology both in the network and at the customer’s home.
These changes in asset lives were based on our plans and our experience thus far in executing such plans, to deploy
all digital video technology across certain of our cable systems. This technology affords us the opportunity to
increase network capacity without costly upgrades and, as such, extends the useful lives of cable plant by four years.
We have also begun to provide all digital set-top boxes to our customer base as part of this all digital network
deployment. In connection with the all digital set-top launch, we have reviewed the asset lives of our customer
premise equipment and determined that their useful lives should be extended by two years. While the timing and
extent of current deployment plans are subject to modification, management believes that extending the useful lives
is appropriate and will be subject to ongoing analysis. The weighted average useful lives of such fixed assets
changed as follows:

Useful Lives

{in years)
From To
Plant and equipment 12 16
Customer premise equipment 5 7
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These changes were made on a prospective basis effective July 1, 2008 and resulted in a reduction of
depreciation expense and a corresponding increase in net income of approximately $11.6 million and an increase to
basic and diluted earnings per share of $0.12 per share for the year ended December 31, 2008.

Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 was approximately
$225.3 million, $232.8 million, and $213.8 million, respectively. As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, we had
property under capitalized leases of $0 million and $10.1 million, respectively, before accumulated depreciation, and
$0 million and $1.9 million, respectively, net of accumulated depreciation. During the years ended December 31,
2008 and 2007, we incurred gross interest costs of $217.8 million and $243.2 million, respectively, of which
$4.3 million and $3.8 million was capitalized. See Note 2.

(6) ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED EXPENSES

Accounts payable and accrued expenses consist of the following (dollars in thousands):

December 31, December 31,
2008 2007
ACCTUCE INEETESE ... e e e e e et va e ceeevssemrsmne s ee b e s s e ases semernn 3 45,265 $ 39,588
Liability under interest rate exchange agreements. .......ocoovoevceiiacencencne. 45,208 —
Accrued Programming COSLS ... cuvrerurericrrmrsresrersssneesesrrssasessessresssressasessaes 37,848 43,596
Accrued taxes and FEES ....vi e e 31,198 27,617
Accrued payroll and benefits...........cocoeeiocrvrrieirvncrr e e 30,590 25,165
Book OVETArafts™ ... e eet et ee et oo 16,827 16,971
Accrued SEIVICE COBES .eiiieieerieiieeceeeeeteeee e e ioe e s e cae e te s se e rnane e rees 14,320 18,114
Accrued property, plant and eqUIPIIENE..........ccoriecnineisreasiee s sensesesareeens 13,606 11,588
Subscriber advance payments 11,236 11,471
Accrued telecommunications.........o.evvevivevvevnneneens 5,058 15,687
AcCOUBtS PAYABLE. ..ot aee 464 18,528
Other aCCTUS EXPEIISES 1vvvvererrerrerrirrrrireerresrsesessisssesnsssssssnssnsnsesesssessnssassasen 16,954 18,590
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other current liabilities ............... 3 268,574 5 246,915

) Book overdrafts represent outstanding checks in excess of funds on deposit at our disbursement accounts. We
transfer funds from our depository accounts to our disbursement accounts upon daily notification of checks
presented for payment. Changes in book overdrafls are reported as part of cash flows from financing activities in
our consolidated statement of cash flows.

(7) DEBT

Debt consisted of the following {dollars in thousands):

December 31, December 31,
2008 2007

Bank credit facilities............ OOV O SOOI TN $ 2,191,000 $ 2,090,000
7 %% sentor notes due 2011 125,000 125,000
9 %% senior notes due 2013 500,000 500,000
8 4% senior notes due 2015 500,000 500,000
Capital lease ObHEALONS ..c...ciieeeieeeeeeeee e e — 33

) $ 3,316,000 $ 3,215,033
L5887 CUITENE POTHOM - oveeeer et ene e s essae s s eeaeas s s nr s ranes 124,500 94,533
Total long-term debt..... ..o e $ 3,191,500 $ 3,120,500
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Bank Credit Facilities

The operating subsidiaries of Mediacom LLC, one of our two principal subsidiaries, maintain a $1.217 billion
senior secured credit facility (the “LLC credit facility”). The LLC credit facility originally consisted of a revolving
credit facility (the “LLC revolver™) with a $400.0 million revolving credit commitment, a $200.0 million term loan
(the “LLC term loan A™) and a $550.0 million term loan (the “LLC teom loan B”). In May 2006, we refinanced the
LLC term loan B with a new term loan (the “LLC term loan C*) in the amount of $650.0 million. Borrowings under
the LLC term loan C bear inferest at a rate that is 0.50% less than the interest rate of the LLC term loan B that it
replaced. The LLC revolver expires on September 30, 2011, and its commitment amount is not subject to scheduled
reductions prior to maturity.

The LLC term loan A matures on September 30, 2012, and beginning on March 31, 2008, has been subject to
quarterly reductions ranging from 2.50% to 9.00% of the original amount. The LLC term loan C matures on
January 31, 2015, and is subject to quarterly reductions of 0.25% that began on March 31, 2007 and extend through
December 31, 2014, with a final payment at maturity representing 92.00% of the original principal amount.

As of December 31, 2008, the maximum commitment available under the LLC revolver was $400.0 million
and the revolver had an outstanding balance of $78.0 million. As of the same date, the LLC term loans A and C had
outstanding balances of $180.0 million and $637.0 million, respectively.

The credit agreement of the LLC credit facility (the “LLC credit agreement™) provides for interest at varying
rates based upon various borrowing options and certain financial ratios, and for commitment fees of 4% to %% per
annum on the unused portion of the available revolving credit commitment. Intefest on outstanding LLC revolver
and LLC term loan A balances is payable at either the Eurodollar rate plus a floating percentage ranging from 1.00%
t0 2.00% or the base rate plus a floating percentage ranging from 0% to 1.00%. Interest on the LLC term loan C is
payable at either the Eurodollar rate plus a floating percentage ranging from 1.50% to 1.75% or the base rate plus a
floating percentage ranging from 0.50% to 0.75%.

For the year ended December 31, 2008, the outstanding debt under the LLC term loan A was reduced by
$20.0 million, or 10.00% of the original principal amount, and the outstanding debt under the LLC term loan C was
reduced by $6.5 million, or 1.00% of the original principal amount.

For the year ending December 31, 2009, the outstanding debt under the LLC term loan A will be reduced by
$24.0 miltion, or 12.00% of the original principal amount, and the outstanding debt under the LLC term loan C will
be reduced by $6.5 million, or 1.00% of the original principal amount.

The operating subsidiaries of Mediacom Broadband LLC, our other principal subsidiary, maintain a
$1.755 billion senior secured credit facility (the “Broadband credit facility”). The Broadband credit facility
originally consisted of a revolving credit facility (the “Broadband revolver™), a $300.0 million term loan A (the
“Broadband term loan A™) and a $500.0 million term loan B (the “Broadband term loan B*).

In October 2005, we amended the Broadband revolver: (i) to increase the revolving credit commitment from
approximately $543.0 million to approximately $650.5 million, of which approximately $430.3 million is not
subject to scheduled reductions prior to the termination date; and (i) to extend the termination date of the
commitments not subject to reductions from March 31, 2010 to December 3 1, 2012, In May 2005, we refinanced the
Broadband term loan B with a new term loan (the “Broadband term loan C™) in the amount of $500.0 million. In
May 2006, we refinanced the Broadband term loan C with a new term loan (the “Broadband term loan D”) in the
amount of $800.0 million. Borrowings under the term loan D bear interest at a rate that is 0.25% less than the
interest rate of the term loan that it replaced. In May 2008, we entered into an incremental facility agreement that
provides for a new term loan (“Broadband term loan E”) under our credit facility in the principal amount of
$350.0 million. Approximately $335.0 million of the proceeds from the new term loan were used to repay the
outstanding balance of the revolving credit portion of our credit facility without any reduction in the revolving credit
commitments.

68



MEDIACOM COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Broadband term loan A matures on March 31, 2010 and, since September 30, 2004, has been subject to
quarterly reductions ranging from 1.00% to 8.00% of the original principal amount. The Broadband term loan D
matures on January 31, 2015, and is subject to guarterly reductions of 0.25% that began on March 31, 2007 and
extend through December 31, 2014, with a final payment at maturity representing 92.00% of the original principal
amount. The Broadband term loan E matures on January 3, 2016, and beginning on June 30, 2008, has been subject
to quarterly reductions of 0.25%, with a final payment at maturity representing 92.50% of the original principal
amount.

As of December 31, 2008, the maximum commitment available under the Broadband revolver was
$516.7 million, and the revolver had an outstanding balance of $57.3 million. As of the same date, the Broadband
term loans A, D and E had outstanding balances of $106.5 million, $784.0 million, and $348.3 million, respectively.

The credit agreement of the Broadband credit facility (the “Broadband credit agreement”) provides for interest
at varying rates based upon various borrowing options and certain financial ratios, and for commitment fees of %%
to %% per annum on the unused portion of the available revolving credit commitment. Interest on outstanding
Broadband revolver and Broadband term loan A balances is payable at either the Eurodollar rate plus a floating
percentage ranging from 1.00% to 2.50% or the base rate plus a floating percentage ranging from 0.25% to 1.50%.
Interest on the Broadband term loan D is payable at either the Eurodollar rate plus a floating percentage ranging
from 1.50% to 1.75% or the base rate plus a floating percentage ranging from 0.50% to 0.75%. Interest on the
Broadband term loan E is payable at cither the Eurodollar Rate plus a margin of 3.50% or the base rate plus a margin
of 2.50%. For the first four years of the term loan E, applicable Eurodollar and base rates are subject to a minimum
of 3.00% and 4.00, respectively.

For the year ended December 31, 2008, the maximum commitment amount under the portion of the Broadband
revolver subject to reduction was reduced by $48.7 million. The outstanding debt under the Broadband term loan A
was reduced by $60.0 million, or 20.00% of the original principal amount, the outstanding debt under the Broadband
term loan D was reduced by $8.0 million, or 1.00% of the original principal amount, and the outstanding debt under
the Broadband term loan E was reduced by $1.75 million, or 0.50% of the original principal amount.

For the year ended December 31, 2009, the maximum commitment amount under the portion of the Broadband
revolver subject to reduction will be reduced by $66.9 million, the outstanding debt under the Broadband term loan
A will be reduced by $60.0 million, or 20.00% of the original principal amount, the outstanding debt under the
Broadband term loan D will be reduced by $8.0 million, or 1.00% of the original principal amount and the
outstanding debt under the Broadband term loan E will be reduced by $3.5 million, or 1.00% of the original
principal amount,

The LLC and Broadband credit agreements require compliance with certain financial covenants, including the
requirement that we maintain a ratio of senior indebtedness (as defined) to annualized system cash flow (as defined)
of no more than 6.0 to 1.0. The credit agreements also require compliance with other covenants including, but not
limited to, limitations on mergers and acquisitions, consolidations and sales of certain assets, liens, the incurrence of
additional indebtedness, certain restricted payments and certain transactions with affiliates.

The LLC credit agreement is collateralized by Mediacom LLC’s pledge of all our ownership interests in our
operating subsidiaries, and is guaranteed by Mediacom LLC on a limited recourse basis to the extent of such
ownership interests. The Broadband credit agreement is collateralized by Mediacom Broadband LLC’s pledge of all
out ownership interests in our operating subsidiaries, and is guaranteed by Mediacom Broadband LLC on a limited
recourse basis to the extent of such ownership interests.

The average interest rates on ocutstanding debt under the bank credit facilities as of December 31, 2008 and
2007 were 4.3% and 6.7%, respectively, including the effect of the interest rate swaps discussed below. As of
December 31, 2008, we had unused credit commitments of approximately $762.2 million under our bank credit
facilities, all of which could be borrowed and used for general corporate purposes based on the terms and conditions
of our debt arrangements. Giving pro forma effect to the completion of the Exchange Agreement on February 13,
2009, we had unused revolving credit commitments of apprommately $652.2 million as of December 31, 2008. See
Note 1, .
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As of December 31, 2008, approximately $19.3 million of letters of credit were issued to various parties as
collateral for our performance relating primarily to insurance and franchise requirements. The amount paid to obtain
these letters of credit was immaterial.

Interest Rate Swaps

We use interest rate exchange agreements, or interest rate swaps, to fix the applicable Eurodollar portion of
debt under our Broadband and LLC Credit Facilities. As of December 31, 2008, we had current interest rate swaps
with various banks pursuant to which the interest rate on $1.2 biltion is fixed at a weighted average rate of
approximately 4.8%. As of the same date, about 70% of our outstanding indebtedness was at fixed interest rates or
subject to interest rate protection. Qur swaps have not been designated as hedges for accounting purposes and have
been accounted for on a mark-to-market basis as of, and for the year ended December 31, 2008. Our current interest
rate swaps are scheduled to expire in the amounts of: $800 million, $300 million and $100 million during the years
ended December 31, 2009, 2010 and 2011, respectively.

In 2008, we entered into forward starting interest rate swaps that fixed rates for two years at a weighted average
of approximately 3.2% on $400.0 million of floating rate debt, commencing in 2009 and approximately 2.9% on
$100.0 million of floating rate debt, commencing in 2010. We also entered forward starting interest rate swaps that
fixed rates for three years at a weighted average rate of approximately 3.3% on $600.0' million of floating rate debt,
commencing in 2009. These agreements have been accounted for on a mark-to-market basis as of, and for the year
ended December 31, 2008.

Although we may be exposed to future losses in the event of counterparties’ non-performance, we do not
expect such losses, if any, to be material.

The fair value of the interest rate swaps is the estimated amount that we would receive or pay to terminate such
agreements, taking into account market interest rates and the remaining time to maturities. As of December 31,
2008, based on the mark-to-market valuation, we recorded on our consolidated balance sheet a net accumulated
liability for derivatives of $80.2 million. As a result of the mark-to-market valuations on these interest rate swaps,
we recorded a loss on derivatives of $54.4 million and $22.9 million for the years ended December 31, 2008 and
2007, respectively.

Senior Notes

On February 26, 1999, Mediacom LLC and its affiliate, Mediacom Capital Corporation, a Delaware
corporation, jointly issued $125.0 million aggregate principal amount of 7 %% senior notes due February 2011 (the
“7 %% Senior Notes™). The 7 %% Senior Notes are unsecured obligations of Mediacom LLC, and the indenture for
the 7 %% Senior Notes stipulates, among other things, restrictions on incurrence of indebtedness, distributions,
mergers and asset sales and has cross-default provisions related to other debt of Mediacom LLC.

On January 24, 2001, Mediacom LLC and Mediacom Capital Corporation jointly issued $500.0 million
aggregate principal amount of 9 %% senior notes due January 2013 (the “9 4% Senior Notes”). The 9 %% Senior
Notes are unsecured obligations of Mediacom LLC, and the indenture for the 9 %% Senior Notes stipulates, among
other things, restrictions on incurrence of indebtedness, distributions, mergers, and asset sales and has cross-default
provisions related to other debt of Mediacom LLC.

On June 29, 2001, Mediacom Broadband LLC and its affiliate, Mediacom Broadband Corporation, a Delaware
corporation, jointly issued $400.0 million aggregate principal amount of 11% notes due July 2013 (the “11% Senior
Notes™). The 11% Senior Notes are unsecured obligations of Mediacom Broadband LLC and the indenture for the
11% Senior Notes stipulates, among other things, restrictions on incurrence of indebtedness, distributions, mergers,
and asset sales and has cross-default provisions related to other debt of Mediacom Broadband LLC.
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On August 30, 2005, Mediacom Broadband LLC and Mediacom Broadband Corporation jointly issued
$200.0 million aggregate principal amount of 8 %% senior notes due October 2015 (the “8 %% Senior Notes”™). The
8 %% Senior Notes are unsecured obligations of Mediacom Broadband LLC, and the indenture for the 8 %% Senior
Notes stipulates, among other things, restrictions on incurrence of indebtedness, distributions, mergers and asset
sales and has cross-default provisions related to other debt of Mediacom Broadband LLC. The proceeds were used
to reduce amounts outstanding under the revolving credit portion of our credit facilities.

On July 17, 2006, we redeemed all of the outstanding 11% Senior Notes. We funded the redemption with
drawdowns on the revolving credit portions of our subsidiary credit facilities.

On October 5, 2006, Mediacom Broadband LLC and Mediacom Broadband Corporation jointly issued an
additional $300.0 million aggregate principal amount of 8 %% Senior Notes. The proceeds were used to reduce
amounts outstanding under the revolving credit portion of our credit facilities.

Our senior notes contain financial and other covenants, though they are generally less restrictive than those
found in our bank credit facilities. Principal covenants include a limitation on the incurrence of additional
indebtedness based upon a maximum ratio of total indebtedness to cash flow, as defined in these debt agreements, of
7.0 to 1.0 in the case of Mediacom LLC’s senior notes, and 8.5 to 1.0 in the case of Mediacom Broadband LLC’s
senior notes. These agreements also contain limitations on dividends, investments and distributions.

Tor all periods through December 31, 2008, we were in compliance with all of the covenants under our bank
credit and senior note agreements. There are no covenants, events of default, borrowing conditions or other terms in
our credit facilities or our other debt arrangements that are based on changes in our credit ratings assigned by any
rating agency. ‘

Convertible Senior Notes

On June 29, 2001, we issued $172.5 million aggregate principal amount of 5 %% convertible senior notes due
July 2008 {the “Convertible Senior Notes”). On June 29, 2006, we paid the entire outstanding principal amount of
our Convertible Senior Notes, plus accrued and unpaid interest, with borrowings under the Broadband term loan D.

Loss on Early Extinguishment of Debt

For the year ended December 31, 2006, we recorded in our consolidated statement of operations a loss on early
extinguishment of debt of $35.8 million as a result of our redemption of our 11% senior notes. This change reflected
representing $22.0 million of call premium, $2.6 million of bank fees and the write-off of $11.2 millien of
unamortized deferred financing costs. There was no loss on early extinguishment of debt in the years ended
December 31, 2007 and 2008.

Fair Value and Debt Maturities

As of December 31, 2008, the fair values of our Senior Notes and Bank Credit Facilities are as follows (dollars
in thousands):

7 %% senior notes due 2011 ......covvvvreereeveernirenrienirenenn, $ 97,500
9 1% senior notes due 2013 ..., 375,000
8 1% senior notes due 2015......oeivieveiviieeceeceeeneeennnn, 317,500
5 790,000
Bank credit facilities. ..ottt $ 1,420,773
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The stated maturities of all debt outstanding as of December 31, 2008 are as follows (dollars in thousands):

2009 et cerernecerrereressersesssst s snere et ressesesrssnsenarssanssssnans § 124,500
2000 e env e e et e va e raeen 92,000
200 e es e e e s st et eeeneen 273,000

72,000
2 13 N OSSO O USSR 575,250
Thereafter ...t 2,179,250
TOAY ettt e et n et nane s $ 3,316,000

(8) STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIT

We have authorized 300,000,000 shares of Class A common stock, $.01 par value and 100,000,000 shares of
Class B common stock, $.01 par value. The holders of Class A and Class B common stock are entitled to vote as a
single class on each matter in which our shareholders are entitled to vote. Each Class A share is entitled to one vote
and each Class B share is entitled to ten votes.

Stock Repurchase Plans

In November 2007, the Board of Directors authorized an additional $50.0 million Class A common stock
repurchase program. During the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, we repurchased approximately
4.9 million, 11.2 million, and 5.8 million shares for an aggregate cost of $22.4 million, $69.0 million and
$34.4 million, respectively, at an average price per share of $4.68, $6.18 and $5.90, respectively. As of
December 31, 2008, approximately $47.6 million remained available under the Class A common stock repurchase
prograrm.

Share-based Compensation

In April 2003, our Board of Directors adopted our 2003 Incentive Plan, or “2003 Plan,” which amended and
restated our 1999 Stock Option Plan and incorporated into the 2003 Plan options that were previously granted
outside the 1999 Stock Option Plan. The 2003 Plan was approved by our stockholders in June 2003 and provides for
the grant of incentive stock options, nonqualified stock options, restricted shares, and other stock-based awards, in
addition to annual incentive awards. The contractual life of share-based awards granted under the 2003 Plan is no
more than 10 years. We deliver shares from treasury upon the exercise of stock options or the conversion of
restricted stock units. The 2003 Plan has 21.0 million shares of common stock available for issuance in settlement of
awards. As of December 31, 2008, approximately 13.8 million shares remained available for issuance under the
2003 Plan.

Effective January 1, 2006, we adopted SFASNo.123(R) using the modified prospective method.
SFAS No. 123(R) revises SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” and supersedes APB
Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees.” SFAS No. 123(R) requires the cost of all share-based
payments to employees, including grants of employee stock options, to be recognized in the financial statements
based on their fair values at the grant date, or the date of later modification, over the requisite service period. In
addition, SFAS 123(R) requires unrecognized cost, based on the amounts previously disclosed in our pro forma
footnote disclosure, related to options vesting after the date of initial adoption to be recognized in the financial
statements over the remaining requisite service period.

Under this method, prior periods are not restated and the amount of compensation cost recognized includes:
{i) compensation cost for all share-based payments granted prior to, but not yet vested as of January 1, 2008, based
on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 123; and (ii) compensation
cost for all share-based payments granted subsequent to January 1, 2008, based on the grant date fair value estimated
in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 123(R). We use the Black-Scholes option pricing model which
requires extensive use of accounting judgment and financial estimates, including estimates of the expected term
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employees will retain their vested stock options before exercising them, the estimated volatility of our stock price
over the expected term, and the number of options that will be forfeited prior to the completion of their vesting
requirements. Application of alternative assumptions could produce significantly different estimates of the fair value
of share-based compensation and consequently, the related amounts recognized in the consolidated statements of
operations. The provisions of SFAS No. 123(R) apply to new stock awards and stock awards outstanding, but not
yet vested, on the effective date. In March 2005, the SEC issued SAB No. 107, “Share-Based Payment,” relating to
SFAS No. 123(R). We have applied the provisions of SAB No. 107 in our adoption.

Impact of the Adoption of SFAS Ne. 123(R)

Upon adoption of SFAS 123(R), we recognize share-based compensation expenses associated with share
awards on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period using the fair value method. The incremental share-
based compensation expense recognized due to the adoption of SFAS 123(R)} was approximately $2.2 million for the
year ended December 31, 2006. Compensation expense related to restricted stock units was recognized before the
implementation of SFAS No. 123(R). Results for prior periods have not been restated.

Total share-based compensation expense was as follows (dollars in thousands, except per share data):

Year Ended
December 31,
2008 2007 2006

Share-based compensation expense by type of award:

Employee StOCK OPHONS ....ccccirvirectrerreerensenrasseiarsressnsnssrssesssnens $ 1,638 1,920 2,240

Employee stock purchase plan 299 284 287

Restricted SLOCK UDIS ..o ovim vt ce oo eeaene 3,231 3,095 1,951

Total share-based compensation eXpense ........coccveeecveereerrnsenns 5,168 5,299 4,478

Tax effect on stock-based compensation eXpense ..........c.we... — — —

Effect ONMEL JOSS oo rr e e §  (5168) $ (5,299 $ (4478)
Effect on loss per share: ‘

Basic and diluted .......veeurervereesricsiess s sessessaess s st $ 005 % (005) 3% {0.04)

As required by SFAS No. 123(R), we made an estimate of expected forfeitures and is recognizing
compensation costs only for those eguity awards expected to vest. The total future compensation cost related to
unvested share-based awards that are expected to vest was $12.5 million as of December 31, 2008, which will be
recognized over a weighted average period of 1.0 years.

In November 2005, the FASE issued FASB Staff Position No. FAS 123(R)-3, “Transition Election Related fo

Accounting for Tax Effects of Shared-Based Payment Awards.” We have elected the “short-cut” method to calculate
the historical pool of windfall tax benefits. '
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Valuation Assumptions

As required by SFAS 123(R), we estimated the fair value of stock options and shares purchased vnder our
employee stock purchase plan, using the Black-Scholes valuation model and the straight-line attribution approach

with the following weighted average assumptions:

Employee Stock Option Plans

Empioeyee Stock Purchase Plans

- Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31,

2008 2007 2006 2008 2007 2006
Dividend yield ..o 0% - 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Expected volatility ........ccoeeeveeceveenens . 48.0% 38.0% 55.3% 33.0% 33.0% 33.0%
Risk free interestrate.....................o..... 2.9% 4.5% 4.8% 3.0% 4.3% 4.7%
Expected option life (in years}............... 6.2 6.1 4.1 05 0.5 0.5
Forfeiture rate .....oovoeeeeeececrieveeens 11.5% 14.0% 14.0% — — —

We do not expect to declare dividends. Expected volatility is based on a combination of implied and historical
volatility of our Class A common stock. For the years ended December 31, 2006, and 2007, we elected the
simplified method in accordance with SAB 107 fo estimate the option life of share-based awards. For the year ended
December 31, 2008, we estimated the option life of share-based awards using historical data and other factors. The
risk free interest rate is based on the U.S. Treasury yield in effect at the date of grant. The forfeiture rate is based on
trends in actual option forfeitures. The awards are subject to annual vesting periods not to exceed 6 years from the

date of grant.
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The following table summarizes the activity of our option plans for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007
and 2006:

Weighted
Average
Weighted Remaining Aggregate
Average Contractual Intrinsic
Exercise Term (In Value (In
: Shares Price years) thousands)
Qutstanding at January 1, 2006 .....c.ccoerevceerevescennenes 4931915 $ 14.12
Granted ....o.oveeeecees et e 415,000 5.73
Exercised - (14,000) 6.94
Forfeited (234,670) 13.85
EXPIred ..ot e sttt — —
Outstanding at December 31, 2006........coocveenneeeenee. 5,098,245 $ 1335 4.5 $ 2,508
Vested or expected to vest at December 31, 2006...... 4,954,230 13.54 4.5 $ 2252
Exercisable at December 31, 2006 ......ccoeevveveeeeeeen 4,069,569 $ 15.06 4.3 3 679
Outstanding at January 1, 2007 ....coeveeerieenieeieenenn, 5,098,245 $ 1335
Granted ..coeevieioeicee e 580,000 8.06
EXEICISEd ...ccccreiirirrirer e e e ere e sas s sane s ens (83,250) 7.01
Forfeited ....o.civiiirceeceeee e (215,687) 14.75
EXPIrEd ..ottt vreener s vness st aenssss s se s een — —
Qutstanding at December 31, 2007......cooceveevieveerenn. 5,379,308 $ 12.82 4.1 $ —
Vested or expected to vest at December 31, 2007 ...... 5,233,676 12.98 4.0 3 —
Exercisable at Deceraber 31, 2007 oo.ovooeeoveoee .. 4,339,078 $ 14.20 34 $ —
Outstanding at Januvary 1, 2008 ..o, 5,379,308 $ 12.82
Granted ..o e 1,676,000 4.07
EXercised ..o et et (29,000) 590
Forfeited ... (176,415) 12.95
EXPIred ..oonoeieee et — -
Outstanding at December 31, 2008..........coooerererennen. 6,849,893 $ 10.70 4.7 $ 420
Vested or expected to vest at December 31, 2008...... 6,537,651 10.98 4.3 $ 361
Exercisable at December 31, 2008 ........cccoceverienenn. 4,619,593 § 13.52 2.6 5 —

The aggregate intrinsic values in the table above represent the total pre-tax intrinsic value, based on our stock
price of $4.30, $4.59 and $8.04 per share as of December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively, which would have
been received by the option holders had all option holders exercised their options as of that date.

The weighted average exercise price at the date of grant of a Class A common stock option granted under our
option plan during the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 was $4.07, $8.06, and $5.73, respectively.
During the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, approximately 413,333, 404,369 and 670,621 stock
. options vested with a weighted average exercise price of $6.72, $6.98 and $9.15, respectively. The proceeds we
received resulting from the exercise of stock options during 2008, 2007 and 2006 were immaterial.
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The following table summarizes information concerning stock options outstanding as of December 31, 2008:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted Aggregate Weighted Aggregate
Average  Weighted yp¢rinsic Average  Weighted yuirinsic
Number of Remaining Average Value Number of Remaining Average  vyjlue
Range of Shares Contractual Exercise n Shares Contractual Exercise (In

Exercise Prices Outstanding Life Price  thousands) Outstanding Life Price  thousands)
% 3.00—3$12.00 4,470,410 64years § 643 § 420 2,240,110 4.1 years F 300 % —
$12.01 —3$18.00 374,935 2.3 years 17.22 — 374,935 2.3 years 17.22 —
$18.01 — $22.00 2,004,548 1.1 years 19.01 — 2,004,548 1.1 years 19.01 —

6,849,393 4.7 years $ 1070 $§ 420 4,619,593 2.6 years $ 1352 % —

Restricted Stock Units

We grant restricted stock units (“RSUs”) to certain employees and directors (together, the “participants™) in
Class A common stock. Awards of RSUs are valued by reference to shares of common stock that entitle participants
to receive, upon the settlement of the unit, one share of common stock for each unit. The awards are subject to
annual vesting periods not exceeding 4 years from the date of grant. We made estimates of expected forfeitures
based on historic voluntary termination behavior and trends of actual RSU forfeitures and recognized compensation
costs for equity awards expected to vest. The aggregate intrinsic value of outstanding RSUs was $12.7 million based
on the closing stock price of $4.30 per share of our Class A common stock at December 31, 2008.

The following table summarizes the activity of our restricted stock unit awards for the year ended
December 31, 2008:

Number ef
Non-Vested Weighted
Share Unit Average Grant
Awards Date Fair Value
Unvested Awards at January 1,2006......cc.occooooiiiererrennn 1,132,300 5 5.46
Granted ...ccocueirricriereernne e s sraeesarrrass s es s nsessass e ranbs s s bmsn 484,700 5.77
Awards Vested. ... e e (41,250) 5.78
FOIFRILEA ...ovoeveceeceeres oo e e s sassssesssses e enae (96,325) 5.54
Unvested Awards at December 31,2006............oc.oooevevvvanen, 1,479,425 3 5.55
(€7 1017« DR UUR TSRO 553,000 8.05
T Awards Vested ..o e, (163,275) 571
FOITeited .ovveovvevee oo eeeereseeeeessnaneens e eee et (36,675) 6.94
Unvested Awards at December 31, 2007.......coooocveereeorerenes 1,832,475 h 6.26
L1 101 L= SO U URR 1,631,200 420
Awards Vested..........oooooemieeee e e {386,250) 6.54
FOITEIE™ .vvureeererieeeceereere et ese e sea et ee s (126,175) 6.11
Unvested Awards at December 31, 2008.... . . 2,951,250 $ 5.09

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

We maintain an employee stock purchase plan (“ESPP”). Under the plan, eligible employees are allowed to '
participate in the purchase of shares of our Class A common stock at 2 minimum 15% discount on the date of the
allocation. Shares purchased by employees amounted to 270,878, 157,999, and 183,906 for the years ended
December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The net proceeds to us were approximately $1.0 million,
$0.9 million and $0.9 million for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively,
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(9) INCOME TAXES

Income tax expense is attributable to an increase in the valuation allowance against certain deferred tax assets.
The reconciliation of the income tax expense at the United States federal statutory rate to the actual income tax

expense 1s as follows (dollars in thousands):

2008 2007 2006
Tax benefit at the United States statutory rate........cococceeeeneee. $ (6,499 $ (13,353) $ (22,808)
State taxes, net of federal tax benefit ... ... 7,765 8,549 9,124
Valuation aHoWance ..............ooooeoioooeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee 55,031 61,552 72,450
Permanent items and Other..........ooo.ooooeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 1,916 818 968
Total INCOME tAX BXPRIISE vv.vervreerrerrenrrarcrerereserereemrersrsesrossserases § 58213 § 57,566 $ 59734

For the year ended December 31, 2008, fotal income tax expense differed from the tax benefit at the
‘U.S. statutory rate primarily due to an increase in the valuation allowance against certain deferred tax assets (see
below). State tax expense primarily represents the change in the state valuation allowance.

During the year ended December 31, 2008, we have again determined that deferred tax assets from net
operating loss carryforwards, that were created in the respective periods, will not be realized under the more-likely-
than-not standard required by SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes.” As a result, we increased our
valuation allowance recorded against these assets. A tax provision of $58.2 million, $57.6 million and $59.7 miltion
was recorded for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The respective tax provision
amounts substantially represent the increase in the deferred tax liabilities related to the basis differences of our

indefinite-lived intangible assets.

Our net deferred tax liability consists of the following (dollars in thousands):

Current deferred tax assets:
Accrued HabilTtes ...t
Unrealized loss on interest rate exchange agreements.........cc.o.occceven.
Allowance for doubtful accounts......coooeiiicici i,
Current deferred taX 8SSeLS...cuuvrrivereirereee v v reersressrrrsrens s msrensraresrarnas
Less: Valuation allowance ..o

Current deferred tax assets, Net.......ccoooiieicciereice e
Long-term deferred tax assets:
Net 0perating loSses ...ocvvemnvir s sasen e
Capital TOSS ... eae
Unrealized loss on interest rate exchange agreements................
OHDEE SIS ... ceieertee e s serns e e e e e sesme e e es
Valuation alloWanCe «.....ceeeeeeecereerrceee e e eeees
Long-term deferred taX @sSeS......civierieciirrerieerecreerersrsenererseresneses
Long-term deferred tax liabilities: )
Investment in cable television systems:
Tangible fixed assets and definite-lived intangible assets ......
Indefinite-lived intangible asSets ..oovvvvveemeeeuveeceeeree e
Long-term deferred tax Habilities c....ovcoeeeiccieeciice e eeae i

Long-term deferred tax liabilities, net ....coooeveieceeee e ceicieecnne

7

2008 2007 2006

$ 8133 $ 6884 § 67383
18,258 — —
1,106 790 848
27,497 7.674 7.231
(19,237) (5,250) (4,764)

$ 8260 $ 2424 § 2467
$ 918,061 $897,921  $812,970
4,593 10,300 9,997
14,133 - —
4,031 6,382 7,310
(658,211) (625,757) (547,023)
$ 282,607  $288846  § 283254
$ 290,867  $291,270  § 285,720
372,390 314,178 256,834

$ 663,257  $605448  $542554
$ 380,650  $316,602  §$ 259,300
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As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, we had deferred tax assets of $968.3 million and $922.3 million,
respectively, with valuation allowances of $677.4 million and $631.0 million, respectively. Most of the deferred tax
assels relate to pre-tax net operating loss carryforwards for federal and state purposes. These federal net operating
loss carryforwards had a balance of approximately $2.3 billion and $2.2 billion as of December 31, 2008 and 2007,
respectively, and if not utilized will expire in the years 2021 through 2028. The state net operating loss
carryforwards had a balance of approximately $2.1 billion and $2.0 billion as of December 31; 2008 and 2007,
respectively, and if not utilized will expire in the years 2009 through 2028. For the year ended December 31, 2008,
we changed our methodology for calculating our deferred tax asset for state net operating loss carryforwards, by
using a more accurate state-by-state calculation rather than applying a blended state rate. This change resulted in a
decrease to our deferred tax assets of approximately $10.4 million. As a result of certain realization requirements of
SFAS No. 123(R), the table of deferred tax assets and liabilities shown above does not include a portion of the net
operating loss deferred tax asset at December 31, 2008 and 2007 that arose directly from tax deductions related to
equity compensation in excess of compensation recognized for financial reporting. Equity would be increased by
approximately $0.2 million, if and when such deferred tax asset is ultimately realized.

SFAS No. 109 requires that deferred tax assets be reduced by a valuation allowance if it is more likely than not
that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. We periodically assess the likelihood of
realization of our deferred tax assets considering all available evidence, both positive and negative, including our
most recent performance, the scheduled reversal of deferred tax Habilities, our forecast of taxable income in future
periods and the availability of prudent tax planning strategies. As a result of these assessments in prior periods, we
have established valuation allowances on a portion of our deferred tax assets due to the uncertainty surrounding the
realization of these assets.

During the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006, based on our assessment of the facts and
circumstances, we concluded that an additional portion of our deferred tax assets from net operating loss
carryfowards would not be realized under the more-likely-than-not standard of SFAS No. 109. As a result, we
increased our valuation allowance against deferred tax assets by $58.2 million, $57.3 million, and $59.5 million in
these years, respectively, and recognized a corresponding non-cash charge to income tax expense in each year.
These amounts related to the portion of deferred tax liabilities based upon the book vs. tax basis difference of our
indefinite-lived intangible assets. Our assessment of the facts and circumstances took into account our history of
losses, the reduced likelihood of future taxable income and the limited availability of prudent tax planning strategies.

We expect to continue to increase our valuation allowance for any increase in the deferred tax liabilities
relating to certain goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets. We will adjust our valuation allowance if we
assess that there is sufficient change in our ability to recover our deferred tax assets. Qur income tax expense in
future periods will be reduced or increased to the extent of offsetting decreases or increases, respectively, in our
valuation allowance. These changes could have a significant impact on our future earnings. In the event of a change
in control, our net operating losses would be subject to Internal Revenue Code Section 382 limitations.

In June 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes- An
Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109.” FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes
recognized in an entity’s financial statements in accordance with SFAS No. 109, and prescribes a recognition
threshold and measurement attributes for financial statement disclosure of tax positions taken or expected to be
taken on a tax return. We adopted the provisions of FIN 48 on January 1, 2007. As of December 31, 2008, we have
not recorded any liability for unrecognized tax benefits. We do not think it is reasonably possible that the total
amount of unrealized tax benefits will significantly change in the next twelve months.

We file U.S. federal consolidated income tax returns and income tax retums in various state and local
jurisdictions. Our 2003, 2006, and 2007 U.S. federal tax years and various state and local years from 2004 through

2007 remain subject to income tax examinations by tax authorities.

We classify interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax positions as a component of income tax expense.
During the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively, no interest and penalties were accrued.
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(10) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Mediacom Management Corporation (“Mediacom Management”), a Delaware corporation, holds a 1% direct
ownership interest in Mediacom California LLC, which in turn holds a 1% interest in Mediacom Arizona LLC.
Revenues related to these ownership interests represent less than 1% of our total revenues. Mediacom Management
is wholly-owned by our Chairman and CEO.

One of our directors is a partner of a law firm that performs various legal services for us. For the years ended
December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, we paid this law firm approximately $0.5 million, $1.2 million and
$0.6 million, respectively, for services performed.

On Septeraber 7, 2008, we entered into a Share Exchange Agreement (the “Exchange Agreement”) with
Shivers Investments, LLC (“Shivers”) and Shivers Trading & Operating Company (“STOC”). Both STOC and
Shivers are affiliates of Morris Communications Company, LLC (“Morris Communications™}, and STOC, Shivers
and Morris Communications are controlled by William S. Morris 1II, a member of the our Board of Directors (the
“Board”). Effective upon closing of the transaction, Messrs. Morris and Mitchell resigned from our Board of
Directors. See Note 11.

(11) REPURCHASE OF MEDIACOM CLASS A COMMON STOCK

On February 13, 2009, we completed the Exchange Agreement pursuant to which we exchanged all of the
capital stock of a wholly-owned subsidiary, which held approximately $110 million of cash and non-strategic cable
systems serving approximately 25,000 basic subscribers, for 28,309,674 shares of Mediacom Class A common stock
held by Shivers. As of December 31, 2008, after giving effect to the completion of this transaction, our total Class A
and Class B outstanding shares were approximately 66.5 million.

The $110 million cash portion of the Exchange Agreement was funded with borrowings made under the
revolving commitments of our bank credit facilities, The effective rate of this borrowing was 1.79% as of
February 12, 2009, and was based on our Eurodollar rate plus a spread of 1.44%. The revolving commitments under
the bank credit facilities mature in September 2011.

The results of operations for the sale of assets were as follows (dollars in thousands):

Year Ended
December 31,
2008 2007
ST 113 ST $ 22,499 b 21,380

Pre-tax Nef INCOME ....vvicvi et ssatessssessseesseeeasesrnrasssresssmssnnsnsanses $ 2,271 $ 1,933
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The sale assets from the Exchange Agreement are presented below under the caption “Assets held for sale” and

“Liabilities held for sale” in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets at December 31, 2008 and 2007
respectively {dollars in thousands):

December 31, December 31,
2008 2007

Assets held for sale -- current:
L7 | O SAPRUUR b 53 b —
Accounts receivable, Det.... ..o 1,618 587
Prepaid and other CUITERE ASSELS ..eecrucrvrereerrsereeernreeresaeerasreesersesan, 22 62
Total assets held for 5ale — CUMTENL. ......c..cvveverereeceerenseerresesees s enaas. 3 1,693 $ 649
Assets heid for sale — long term:
Property, plant and equipment, Det .......cccoeeveneicnicciiccnnenconees e 6,396 24,154
Franchise rights, Det......c.ccrvioeiimrinicrieninrce e, 4,532 4,773
OMhET ASSBIS. ..ottt esees e v s e iensr e tas e e rnabsemssnaanssaaasanns 3 —
Total assets held for sale — long term ......occoeeerieiciiiccieeeee - 3 10,933 $ 28,927
Liabilities held for sale — current:
Accounts payable and accrued €XPEnSes ......cvvecueoseresseneaeieseesienrnenns $ 2,020 3 570
Total liabilities held for sale — current .......cooooiecienicnenicniececeecce, $ 2,020 3 570

Based upon the $4.30 closing price per share of our Class A common stock on December 31, 2008, we
recorded a non-cash write-down on the sale assets of approximately $17.7 million for the year ended December 31,
2008. This unrealized loss is included in our statements of operations for the year ended December 31, 2008 under
the caption loss on sale of cable systems, net. This loss on sale of cable systems, net includes approximately
$4.0 million in advisory and consulting fees paid in connection with the Exchange Agreement.

The closing price of our Class A common stock on February 13, 2009 was $4.92. As a result, we expect to
realize a gain on the sale of cable systems, net of approximately $18 million in the first quarter of 2009, This
amount, along with other closing adjustments, will be recorded in our results of operations for the three months
ended March 31, 2009.

(12) EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Substantially all of our employees are eligible to participate in a defined contribution plan pursuant to the
Internal Revenue Code Section 401(k) (the “Plan”™). Under such Plan, eligible employees may contribute up to 15%
of their current pre-tax compensation. The Plan permits, but does not require, matching contributions and non-
. matching {profit sharing) conftributions to be made by us up to a maximum dollar amount or maximum percentage of
participant contributions, as we determine annually. We presently match 50% on the first 6% of employee
contributions. Qur contributions under the Plan totaled approximately $2.5 million, $2.4 million and $2.1 million for
the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.
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(13) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Lease and Rental Agreements

Under various lease and rental agreements for offices, warehouses and computer terminals, we had rental
expense of approximately $6.5 million, $6.3 million and $5.7 million for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007
and 2006, respectively. Future minimum annual rental payments are as follows (dollars in thousands):

6,212
5,392
4,538
3,464
1,818
8,531
29,955

In addition, we rent utility poles in our operations generally under short-termn arrangements, but we expect these
arrangements to recur. Total rental expense for utility poles was approximately $11.0 million, $9.8 million and
$10.4 million for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Letters of Credit

As of December 31, 2008, approximately $19.3 million of letiers of credit were issued to various parties to
secure our performance relating to insurance and franchise requirements. The fair value of such letters of credit was
immaterial.

Legal Proceedings

Mediacom LLC, one of our wholly owned subsidiaries, is named as a defendant in a putative class action,
captioned Gary Ogg and Janice Ogg v. Mediacom LLC, pending in the Circuit Court of Clay County, Missouri,
originally filed in April 2001. The lawsuit alleges that Mediacom LLC, in areas where there was no cable franchise,
failed to obtain permission from landowners to place its fiber interconnection cable notwithstanding the possession
of agreements or permission from other third parties. While the parties continue to contest liability, there also
remains a dispute as to the proper measure of damages. Based on a report by their experts, the plaintiffs claim
compensatory damages of approximately $14.5 million. Legal fees, prejudgment interest, potential punitive damages
and other costs could increase that estimate to approximately $26.0 million. The plaintiffs have recently proposed an
alternative damage theory of $42.0 million in compensatory damages. We are unable to reasonably determine the
amount of our final liability in this lawsuit, as our experts have estimated our liability to be within the range of
approximately $0.1 million to $2.3 million. This estimate does not include any estimate of damages for prejudgment
interest, attorneys’ fees or punitive damages. We believe, however, that the amount of such liability, as stated by any
of the parties, would not have a material effect on our consolidated financial position, results of operations, cash
flows or business. There can be no assurance that the actual liability would not exceed this estimated range. As of
March 9, 2009, the trial commenced for the claim by the class representatives, Gary and Janice Ogg. Mediacom
LLC has tendered the lawsuit to our insurance carrier for defense and indemnification. The carrier has agreed to
defend Mediacom LLC under a reservation of rights, and a declaratory judgment action is pending regarding the
carrier’s defense and coverage responsibilities. Mediacom LLC intends to vigorously defend against any claims
made by the plaintiffs, including at trial, and on appeal, if necessary.

We are involved in various other legal actions arising in the ordinary course of business. In the opinion of

management, the ultimate disposition of these other matters will not have a material adverse effect on our
consolidated financial position, results of operations, cash flows or business.
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(14) SALE OF CABLE SYSTEMS, NET

We recorded a net gain on sale of assets, amounting to $11.1 million, for the year ended December 31, 2007,
due to the sale of certain cable systems in Iowa and South Dakota. See Note 11,

(15) SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (all amounts in thousands, except per share data):

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
(Unaudited)
2008
REVEIIICS. . e e e e eeee e eeeeabarns $ 339,679 $ 349,501 $ 352,553 3 360,161
Operating income 64,616 69,332 71,179 73,729
Net (loss} income $ (30,635) § 20932 5 2,197 $ (69,988)
Basic and diluted net (loss) income per shage................ (0.31) 0.22 0.02 (0.74)
- Basic weighted average common shares outstanding.... 97,645 - 95,137 94,628 94,781
Diluted weighted average common shares
QUISEANAINE ...eeveeerveeererrrreereeresses e cace e eeccneeneeacnean 97,645 97,257 96,916 94,781
2007
REVEIUES. covenerneeeerce et rnaasi e e nenes $ 307,876 $§ 324,734 $ 328,252 $ 332,513
Operating iNCOME ...ueervverersrereereascencne 52,327 60,961 55,439 53,602
INEL LOSS ceeereciieceeeieee e et et ses e $ (16,880) §$ (6,644 $ (34,733) § (36,872)
Basic and diluted net loss per share {0.15) (0.06) 0.32) (0.35)
Basic and diluted weighted average common shares
OULSEANAITIE «..eeeeeeee e eeee e ea e sananes 109,890 109,758 108,013 103,649
2006
Revenues............... ettt ae e e sn s bn s s $ 289,343 $ 302,421 $ 305,556 $ 313,075
Operaling IMCOME .-o..oeeeee e e eeete et esacreaans 52,696 59,850 55,963 55,111
Net (1085) INCOME...ovveeriiemeeirrrnereerenerresrssones $ (37,208) $ 5725 % (89,827)y $ (3,612)
Basic and diluted net (Toss) income per share 0.33) 0.05 (0.82) (0.03)
Basic weighted average common shares outstanding.... 113,529 110,922 109,689 109,798
Diluted weighted average common shares
OULSEANAINEG ....eeveineeence et e eme e rnesesnesesntsescseens 113,529 121,690 109,689 109,798

M Effective January 1, 2006 we adopted SFAS No. 123(R) (sce Note 8).
(16) SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On February 13, 2009, we completed the Exchange Agreement pursuant to which we exchanged all of the
capital stock of a wholly-owned subsidiary, which held approximately $110 million of cash and non-strategic cable
systems-serving approximately 25,000 basic subscribers, for 28,309,674 shares of Mediacom Class A common stock
held by Shivers. As of December 31, 2008, after giving effect to the completion of this transaction, our total Class A
and Class B outstanding shares were approximately 66.5 million. See Notes 10 and 11. '
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MEDIACOM COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

Additions Deductions
Balanceat Chargedto Chargedto Chargedto Charged to
Beginning Costs and Other Costs and Other Balance at
) of Period Expenses Accounts Expenses Accounts  end of Period

December 31, 2006
Allowance for doubtful accounts:
Current receivables.....ccoovvceeeeee 3 3,078 § 4,148 % — $ 5053 % — 5 2,173
Valuation allowance
Deferred tax assetS......oocceveervennne. $ 429480 § 122307 § — ¥ — $ — ¥ 551,787
December 31, 2007
Allowance for doubtful accounts:
Current receivables ... cncneaen. $ 2173 § 5416 § — $ 5482 $ 2,107
Valuation allowance
Deferred tax assets.....coooveeereereene. $ 551,787 $ 79220 $ — ¥ — 3 — § 631,007
December 31, 2008
Allowance for doubtful accounts: .
Current receivables......oooeeeeeeneee.. $ 2,107 § 3165 % — $ 2456 § 42 5 2,774
Valuation allowance
Deferred tax assetS.........cooverivenns $ 631,007 $ 46441 $ — % — 3 — % 677448

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None,
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer, we evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Rule 13a-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) as of the end of the period covered by this report. Based
upon that evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls
and procedures were effective as of December 31, 2008.

There has not been any change in our infemal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rule 13a-15(f)
under the Exchange Act) during the quarter ended December 31, 2008 that has materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, our internal contro] over financial reporting.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

‘ Management of our company is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over
financial reporting. Internal control over financial reporting is defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the
Exchange Act as a process designed by, or under the supervision of our principal executive and principal financial
officers and effected by our board of directors, management and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and includes those policies and procedures that:

e pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
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* provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary fo permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management
and directors of the company; and

¢ provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use
or disposition of our assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of our inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risks that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate,

Management assessed the effectiveness of our company’s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2008. In making this assessment, management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal Control-Integrated Framework. Based
on this assessment, management determined that, as of December 31, 2008, our company’s internal control over
financial reporting was effective.

The effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2008 has been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public-accounting firm, as stated in their report which is
included herein.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None
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PART NI
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Information called for by Item 10 is set forth under the heading “Directors and Executive Officers of the
Registrant” in Item 4A of this annual report and in our proxy statement relating to the 2009 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders {the “Proxy Statement”}, which information is incorporated herein by this reference.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Information called for by Item 11 is set forth in our Proxy Statement, which information is incorporated herein
by this reference.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Information called for by Item 12 is set forth in our Proxy Statement, which information is incorporated herein
by this reference.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DBIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE

Information called for by Ttem 13 is set forth in our Proxy Statement, which information is incorporated herein
by this reference.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

Information called for by Item 14 is set forth in our Proxy Statement, which information is incorporated herein
by this reference.
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PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(@) Financial Statements

Our financial statements as set forth in the Index to Consolidated Financial Statements under Part 11, Item 8§ of
this Form 10-K are hereby incorporated by reference.

(b) Exhibits

The following exhibits, which are numbered in accordance with Item 601 of Regulation S-K, are filed herewith
or, as noted, incorporated by reference herein:

Exhibit
Number Exhibit Description
2.1 Share Exchange Agreement, dated as of September 7, 2008, by and between Mediacom Communications

Corporation, Shivers Investments, LLC, and Shivers Trading & Operating Company'"

2.2 Significant Stockholder Agreement, dated as of September 7, 2008 by and between Mediacom
Communications Corporation and Roceo B. Commisso™

23 Asset Transfer Agreement, dated February 11, 2009, by and among Mediacom Communications
Corporation, certain operating subsidiaries of Mediacom LLC and the operating subsidiaries of

Mediacom Broadband LLC

3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Mediacom Communications Corporation®

3.2 Amended and Restated By-laws of Mediacom Communications Corporation®™

4.1 Form of certificate evidencing share of Class A cornmon stock™

4.2 Indenture relating to 7 7% sentor notes due 2011 of Mediacom LLC and Mediacom Capital
Corporation®

4.3 Indenture relating to 9 %% senior notes due 2013 of Mediacom LLC and Mediacom Capital
Corporation®

4.4 Indenture relating to § %% senior notes due 2015 of Mediacom Broadband LLC and Mediacom

Broadband Corporation'®

10.1(a)  Credit Agreement, dated as of October 21, 2004, among the operating subsidiaries of Med1acom LLC, the
lenders thereto and JPMorgan Chase Bank, as administrative agent for the lenders(™

10.1{b) Amendment No. 1, dated as of May 5, 2006, to the Credit Agreement, dated as of October 21, 2004,
among the operating subsidiaries of Mediacom LLC, the lenders thereto and JPMorgan Chase Bank, as
administrative agent for the lenders®

10.1{c)  Amendment No. 2, dated as of June 11, 2007, to the Credit Agreement, dated as of October 21, 2004,
among the operating subsidiaries of Medlacorn LLC, the lenders party thereto and JPMorgan Chase Bank
as administrative agent for the lenders®

10.1(d)  Amendment No. 3, dated as of June 11, 2007, to the Credit Agreement, dated of October 21, 2004,
among the operating subsidiaries of Mediacom LLC, the lenders party thereto and JPMorgan Chase
Bank, as administrative agent for the lenders™®

102(a)  Amendment and Restatement, dated December 16, 2004, of Credit Agreement, dated as of July 18, 2001,
among the operating subsidiaries of Mediacom Broadband LLC, the lenders thereto and JPMorgan Chase
Bank, as administrative agent for the lenders"'®

10.2(b) Amendment No. 1, dated as of October 11, 2005, to the Amendment and Restaternent, dated as of
December 16, 2004, of Credit Agreement, dated as of July 18, 2001, among the operating subsidiaries of
Mediacom Broadband LLC, the lenders thereto and JP Morgan Chase Bank, as administrative agent for

 the lenders™?
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10.2(c)

10.2(d)

10.2(e)

10.3
104
10.5

10.6*

10.7
10.8

10.9*
10.10
10.11(a)*
10.11(b)*
10.11{c)*
10.12(a)
10.12(b)
10.12(c)
12.1
21.1
23.1
31.1
32.1

Amendment No. 2, dated as of May 5, 2006, to the Amendment and Restaternent, dated as of
December 16, 2004, of Credit Agreement, dated as of July 18, 2001, among the operating subsidiaries
of Mediacom Broadband LLC, the lenders thereto and JPMorgan Chase Bank, as administrative agent
for the lenders®

Amendment No. 3, dated as of June 11, 2007, to the Amendment and Restatement, dated as of
December 16, 2004, of Credit Agreement, dated as of July 18, 2001, among the operating subsidiaries
of Mediacom Broadband LLC, the lenders party thereto and JPMorgan Chase Bank, as administrative
agent for the lenders®

Amendment No. 4, dated as of June 11, 2007, to the Amendment and Restatement, dates as of
December 16, 2004, of Credit Agreement, dated as of July 18, 2001, among the operating subsidiaries
of Mediacom Broadband LL.C, the lenders party thereto and JPMorgan Chase Bank, as administrative
agent for the lenders®

Incremental Facility Agreement, dated as of May 5, 2006, between the operating subsidiaries of
Medlacom LLC, the lenders signatory thereto and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative
agent™

Incremental Facility Agreement, dated as of May 5, 2006, between the operating subsidiaries of
Mediacom Broadband LLC, the lenders sxgnatory thereto and JPMorgan Chase Bank. N.A., as
administrative agent®

Incremental Facility Agreement, dated as of May 29, 2008, between the operating subsidiaries of
Mediacom Broadband LLC, the lenders signatory thereto and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as
administrative agent'?

Form of Amended and Restated Registration Rights Agreement by and among Mediacom
Communications Corporation, Rocco B. Commisso, BMO Financial, Inc., CB Capital Investors, L.P.,
Chase Manhattan Cap1tal L.P., Morris Communications Corporation, Private Market Fund, L.P. and
U.S. Investor, Inc.”?

Fifth Amended and Restated Operating Agreement of Mediacom LLC®®

Ameﬁ%ed and Restated Limited Liability Company Operating Agreement of Mediacom Broadband
LIL.C

Compensation Agreement of Rocco Commisso
2001 Employee Stock Purchase Plan"'®
2003 Incentive Plan'?

Form of Stock Option Agreement for Executive Officers

(15)

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement for Executive Officers
Non-Employee Directors Equify Incentive Plan!"®

Form of Stock Option Agreement for Non-Employee Directors

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement for Non-Employee Directors
Schedule of Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges

Subsidiaries of Mediacom Communications Corporation

Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Rule 13a-14(a) Certifications

Section 1350 Certifications
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(c) Financial Statement Schedule
The financial statement schedule — Schedule II — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts — is part of this

Form 10-K.

*  Compensatory Plan

@) Filed as an exhibit to the Current Report on Form8-K, dated September7, 2008, of Mediacom
Communications Corporation and incorporated herein by reference.

@ Filed as an exhibit to the Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No.333-90879) of Mediacom
Communications Corporation and incorporated herein by reference.

© Filed as an exhibit to the Current Report on Form 8-K, dated December 21, 2007, of Mediacom
Communications Corporation and incorporated herein by reference.

® " Filed as an exhibit to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1998 of
Mediacom LLC and Mediacom Capital Corporation and incorporated herein by reference.

®  Filed as an exhibit to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2000 of
Mediacom Comimunications Corporation and incorporated herein by reference.

" Filed as an exhibit to the Current Report on Form 8-K, dated August 30, 2005, of Mediacom Broadband LLC
and Mediacom Broadband Corporation and incorporated herein by reference.

) Filed as an exhibit to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30, 2004 of
Mediacom Communications Corporation and incorporated herein by reference.

% Filed as an exhibit to the Quarterly Report of Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2006 of
Mediacom Communications Corporation and incorporated herein by reference. ‘

@ Filed as an exhibit to the Quarterly Report of Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2007 of
Mediacom Communications Corporation and incorporated herein by reference.

49 Filed as an exhibit to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004 of
Mediacom Communications Corporation and incorporated herein by reference.

Y Filed as an exhibit to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30, 2005 of
Mediacom Communications Corporation and incorporated herein by reference.

2 Filed as an exhibit to the Current Report on Form 8-K, dated May 29, 2008, of Mediacom Broadband LLC and
incorporated herein by reference.

) Filed as an exhibit to the Annual Report on Form 10-K. for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1999 of
Mediacom Communications Corporation and incorporated herein by reference.

%) Filed as an exhibit to the Registration Statement on Form S-4 (File No. 333-72440) of Mediacom Broadband
LLC and Mediacom Broadband Corporation and incorporated herein by reference.

(5 Filed as an exhibit to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2004 of
Mediacom Communications Corporation and incorporated herein by reference.

(9 Filed as an exhibit to the Registration Staterment on Form S-8 (File No. 333-68306) of Mediacom
Communications Corporation and incorporated herein by reference.

" Filed as Exhibit A to the definitive Proxy Statement of Mediacom Communications Corperation on April 30,
2003 and incorporated herein by reference.

(18)

Filed as Exhibit A to the definitive Proxy Statement of Mediacom Communications Corporatxon on April 29,
2004 and incorporated herein by reference.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on our behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Mediacom Communications Corporation

March 13, 2009
By: fs/ Rocco B. COMMISSO

Rocco B. Commisso
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s/ Rocco B. COMMISSO Chairman and Chief Executive Officer March 13, 2008
Roceo B. Commisso (principal executive officer)
fs/ MARK E. STEPHAN Executive Vice President, Chief Financial March 13, 2008
Mark E. Stephan Officer and Director (principal financial officer
- and principal accounting officer)
/s/ THOMAS V. REIFENHEISER Director March 13, 2008
Thomas V. Reifenheiser .
/s/ NATALE S. RICCIARD! Director March 13, 2008
Natale S, Ricciardi
/s/ ROBERT E.. WINIKOFF Director March 13, 2008 -

Robert L. Winikoff
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Mediacom Communications Corporation and Subsidiaries

Schedule of Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges

Eamings:

{Loss) income before income taxes ..
Interest expense, Net.....cccooeeeecccncenns
Amortization of capitalized interest...
Amortization of debt issuance costs ..

Interest component of rent expense’”

Earnings available for fixed charges...

Fixed Charges:

Interest expense, net.......coeeecercceacnns
Capitalized Interest .........coceevevereecns
Amortization of debt issuance cost......ccoecneeens

Interest component of rent expense!!

Total fixed charges ........cccovveevrcennnn...
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges......

For the Years Ended December 31,

Exhibit 12.1

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
(In thousands, except ratio amounts)

............... $ (19,281) $ (37,563) $ (65,188) § (24,966) $§ 13,628
............... 213,333 239,015 227,206 208,264 192,740
............... 2,872 3,069 2,678 2,357 2,055
............... 5,070 4,884 5,998 8,613 8,725
_______________ 6,289 5,787 5,755 5,267 4,931
............... $ 208,283 § 215,192 $ 176,449 $ 199,535 § 222,079
............... $ 213,333 $ 239,015 § 227,206 3 208,264 § 192,740
............... 4,273 3,818 3,603 3,756 3,012
5,070 4,884 5,998 8,013 8,725

_______________ 6,289 5,787 5,755 5,267 4,931
............... $ 228,965 § 253,504 § 242,562 $ 225900 § 209,408
............... — — — - 1.06
$ (38312) § (66,113) $ (26,365) $ 12,671

Deficiency of earnings over fixed charges ........ 5 (20,682)

0

90

A reasonable approximation {one-third) is deemed to be the interest factor included in rental expense.



Exhibit 23.1
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements on Form $-3 (File No. 333-
82124) and FormS-8 (File Nos. 333-41360, 333-68306, 333-122787 and 333-129008) of Mediacom
Communications Corporation of our report dated March 13, 2009 relating to the financial statements, financial
statement schedule, and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, which appear in this Form 10-
K.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
New York, New York

March 13, 2009

-9



Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATIONS
I, Rocco B. Commisso, certify that:
(1) T have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of Mediacom Communications Corporation;

(2) Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were
made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

(3) Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of,
and for, the periods presented in this report;

(4) The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls
and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial
reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared; '

b) Designed such intermal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report
our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of end of the period covered
by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual
report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s intemal controt
over financial reporting; and

{3) The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors
{or persons performing the equivalent function):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal contvol over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process,
summarize and report financial information; and

b} Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant
role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

[s/_Rocco B, COMMISSO
Rocco B. Commisso
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

March 13, 2009
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Exhibit 31.1
I, Mark E. Stephan, certify that:
(1) 1 have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of Mediacom Communications Corporation;

(2) Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were
made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

(3) Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of,
and for, the periods presented in this report;

{4) The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls
and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 132-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial
reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f}) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report
our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of end of the period covered
by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual
report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting; and

(5) The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors
(or persons performing the equivalent function):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process,
summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant
role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

/s MARK E. STEPHAN
Mark E. Stephan
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

March 13, 2009
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Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Mediacom Communications Corporation (the “Company”™) on
Form 10-X for the period ended December 31, 2008 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the
date hereof (the “Report™), Rocco B. Commisso, Chief Executive Officer, and Mark E. Stephan, Chief Financial
Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002, that:

(1) the Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a} or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934; and

(2) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and
results of operations of the Company.

By: /s/ Rocco B. CoMMISSO
Rocco B. Commisso
Chatrman and Chief Executive Officer

By: /s/ MARK E. STEPHAN
Mark E. Stephan
Executive Vice President and -
Chief Financial Officer

March 13, 2009
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Directors and Officers

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Rocco B. Commisso
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer,
Mediacom Communications Corporation

Thomas V. Reifenheiser
Retired Managing Director,
JP Morgan Chase & Co.

Natale S. Ricciardi
Fresident,

Global Manufacturing,
Phizer Inc.

Scott W. Seaton
FPariner,
Londonderry Capital LLC

Mark E. Stephan

Executive Vice President and

Chief Financial Officer

Mediacom Communications Corporation

Robert L. Winikoff
Partner,
-Sonnenschein Nath & Rosenthal LLP

OFFICERS AND KEY MANAGEMENT

Rocco B. Commmisso

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Charles J. Bartolotta
Senior Vice President,
Enterprise Solutions and
Field Service Cperations

ltalia Commisso Weinand
Senior Vice President,

Programming and Human Resources

Calvin G. Craib
Senior Vice President,
Corporate Finance and
Business Development

Tapan Dandnaik
Senior Vice President,
Customer Service and
Financial Operations

Steve Litwer
Senior Vice President,
Advertising Sales,
OnMedia Division

Edward S. Pardini
Senior Vice President,
Divisional Operations,
North Central Division

John G. Pascarelli
Executive Vice President,
Operations

Michael Rahimi
Seniar Vice President,
Marketing and Consumer Services

Mark E. Stephan

Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

J.R. Walden
Senior Vice President,
Technology

Brian M. Waish
Senior Vice President,
Corporate Controller

Joseph E. Young
Senior Vice President,
General Counsel and Secretary



Mediacom)

Corporate Headquarters
100 Crystal Run Road
Middletown, New York 10841
845-695-2600
www.mediacomecc.com
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